SAIC MOTOR ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Company Code: 600104 Abbreviation of the Company: SAIC Motor

SAIC Motor Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023

1/244



SAIC MOTOR ANNUAL REPORT 2023

6.

Important Note
Board of Directors (the "Board'), Board of Supervisors, directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company certify that this report does not contain any false or misleading
statements or material omissions and are jointly and severally liable for the authenticity,
accuracy and integrity of the content.

All directors of the Company attended Board meetings.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP issued a standard and unqualified auditors’ report
to the Company.

Mr. Chen Hong, Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wei Yong, the chief financial officer, and Ms. Gu
Xiao Qiong, head of Accounting Department, certify the authenticity, accuracy and integrity
of the financial reports contained in the Annual Report of the current year.

Profit distribution plan or plan for converting reserve into share capital resolved by the Board
for the reporting period

On the basis of the total share capital of 11,575,299,445 shares minus 105,843,541 shares in the

Company's special account for share repurchase as at the disclosure date of this report,, that is,

11,469,455,904 shares, the Company plans to distribute cash dividends of RMB 3.69 (inclusive of

tax) per 10 shares, totalling RMB 4,232,229,228.58. No capital reserve was converted into share

capital. If, during the period between the disclosure date of this report and the registration date of

the equity allocation, the number of shares on the basis of which the Company is entitled to

distribute profits changes due to situations such as share repurchase, the total amount of the profit

distribution remains unchanged and the amount allocated per share is adjusted accordingly.

Risk statement of forward-looking description

VApplicable ON/A

No

No

No

10.

11.

Forward-looking description in this report, such as future plans and development strategies, does
not constitute any substantive commitment of the Company to investors. Investors are hereby
reminded of investment risks.

Does the situation exist where the controlling shareholders and other related parties occupy
the funds of the Company for non-operational use?

Does the situation exist where the external guarantee is provided which is not in compliance
with the required decision-making procedures?

Are over 1/2 of directors not able to ensure the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the
Annual Report disclosed by the Company?

Significant risk alert

There are no significant risks which have substantive effects on the Company's production and
operation during the reporting period. The Company has described the possible risks that the
Company may be exposed to in the process of production and operation in this report. Please refer
to "Possible Risks™ in Section 11 Management Discussion and Analysis.

Others

OApplicable VN/A
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Section |  Definition

I Definition
In this report, unless the context otherwise indicated, the following terms are defined as below:

Definitions of frequently used diction

CSRC Refersto | China Securities Regulatory Commission
SSE Refersto | Shanghai Stock Exchange
Shanghai SASAC Refers to
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Section Il General Information and Major Financial Indicators of the
Company

| Information of the Company

Name of the Company in Chinese

Abbreviation of the Company in Chinese

Name of the Company in English SAIC Motor Corporation Limited

Abbreviation of the Company in English |SAIC Motor

Legal representative of the Company Mr.Chen Hong

Il Contacts
Secretary of the Board Securities affairs representative
Name Mr.Chen Xun Mr.Lu Xiaolong
Address No. 489,-Weihai Road, Jing'an District, No. 489,_Weihai Road, Jing'an District,
Shanghai, China Shanghai, China
Telephone  [(021)22011138 (021)22011138
Fax (021)22011777 (021)22011777
E-mail saicmotor@saic.com.cn saicmotor@saic.com.cn

111 General information of the Company

Registered address Room 509, No.1 Tovv_er, N_o. 563 Songtao Road, Pilot Free
Trade Zone, Shanghai, China

Changes in registered address No change during the reporting period

Office address No. 489, Weihai Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China

Post code of office address 200041

Website http://www.saicmotor.com

E-mail saicmotor@saic.com.cn

IV Information disclosure and where the information is available

Media and website for disclosure of the Shanghai Securities News, China Securities Journal
Company's Annual Report and Securities Times

CSRC website for disclosure of the

Company's Annual Report http://www.sse.com.cn

Location where the Company's Annual

Report is available Office of the Board

V  Profile of the Company's shares

Profile of the Company's shares

Class of shares Stock exchange Short name Stock code Forrr?:rl;]sehort
A shares Shanghai Stock SAIC Motor 600104 Shanghz_;u
Exchange Automotive
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VI Other relevant information

Information of the Name PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

accounting firm . 42nd F, Qiantan Centre, No. 588, Dongyu Road,
engaged by the Office address Pudong New Area, Shanghai

Company (domestic) Signing CPA Zhuang Hao and Shen Zhe

VIl Major accounting data and financial indicators in recent three years
(I) Major accounting data

Unit: RMB

Major accounting data 2023 2022 Changes (%) 2021
Total revenue 744,705,132,922.20 | 744.062,883,284.04 0.09 | 779.845,786,393.56
Revenue 726,199,110,369.74 | 720,987,528,302.03 0.72 | 759,914,635,560.08
Net profit attributable to shareholders 14,106,165,142.98 16,117,549,650.39 1248 24,533,097,043.83

of listed companies

Net profit attributable to shareholders
of listed companies after deducting 10,044,669,854.90 8,991,524,863.70 11.71 18,575,001,265.06
non-recurring profit or loss

Net cash flows from operating

activities 42,334,422 ,535.36 9,504,540,284.51 345.41 21,615,739,153.91
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 Changes (%) 31 December 2021

Net assets attributable to shareholders

of listed companies 286,318,745,625.95 279,233,525,947.44 2.54 273,773,675,300.63
Total assets 1,006,650,278,661.54 990,107,381,169.76 1.67 916,922,695,643.33
(11) Major financial indicators

Major financial indicators 2023 2022 Changes (%) 2021

Basic earnings per share (RMB/Share) 1.226 1.400 -12.43 2.120
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/Share) Not applicable 1.400 Not applicable | Not applicable

Basic earnings per share after deducting non-recurring

profit or loss (RMB/Share) 0.873 0.781 1178 1.605
Weighted average ROE (%) 4.98 5.84 | Decreased by 0.86 pct 9.19
Weighted average ROE after deducting non-recurring profit 355 3.26 Increased by 0.29 pct 6.96

or loss (%)

Explanation on major accounting data and financial indicators at the end of the recent three reporting
periods

VApplicable ON/A

Net cash flows from operating activities increased by 345.41% year-on-year, mainly due to the moderate
adjustment of the loan scale by the Company's subsidiary, SFC, according to business needs.

VIl Differences in accounting data under China and foreign accounting standards

(1) Differences in net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the listed companies
where financial statements are disclosed in accordance with International Accounting
Standards (“IAS”) and China Accounting Standards (“CAS”)

CApplicable VN/A

(1) Differences in net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the listed companies
where financial statements are disclosed in accordance with foreign accounting standards and
CAS

CApplicable VN/A

(111)  Explanation on differences between China and foreign accounting standards
CApplicable VN/A
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IX  Major quarterly financial data for the year 2023

Unit: RMB
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
(Jan. to Mar.) (Apr. to Jun.) (Jul. to Sept.) (Oct. to Dec.)

Total revenue 145,916,475,075.54 | 180,638,392,229.31 | 196,787,101,644.16 | 221,363,163,973.19
Revenue 140,657,396,527.85 | 175,752,150,394.77 | 191,560,461,797.26 | 218,229,101,649.86
Net profit attributable to
shareholders of listed 2,782,676,516.80 4,302,369,493.93 4,322,192,065.17 2,698,927,067.08
companies
Net profit attributable to
shareholders of listed
companies after 2,163,263,182.68 3,505,613,083.10 3,802,445,538.41 573,348,050.71
deducting non-recurring
profit or loss
Net cash flows from 19,863,191,963.88 |  16,755,969,809.01 | 14,204,862,742.06 | 21,236,781,948.17
operating activities

Explanation on differences between above quarterly data and disclosed data in periodic reports

CApplicable VN/A

X Items and amounts of non-recurring profit or loss

VApplicable ON/A

Unit: RMB

Items of non-recurring profit or loss

2023

Note (if
applicable)

2022

2021

Gains or losses on the disposals of non-current assets,
including the written-off portion of the provision for
impairment of assets

1,472,863,302.37

2,861,927,027.00

4,522,318,862.58

Government grants recognized in profit or loss, other
than those that are closely related to the Company's
ordinary course of business, are in accordance with
national policies and regulations, are received in
accordance with established standards and have a
sustained impact on the Company's profit or loss.

4,050,408,635.29

3,659,334,808.82

4,032,306,772.41

Profit or loss arising from changes in fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities held by non-
financial enterprises and from disposals of financial
assets and financial liabilities, except for effective
hedging business related to the Company’s ordinary
course of business

46,310,347.47

-50,208,898.51

35,968,969.21

Income from investments in other equity instruments

7,989,798.56

8,479,952.60

Profit or loss on entrusted loans

22,238,945.89

22,724,343.34

24,606,304.16

Reversal of provision for impairment of receivables
tested for impairment on an individual basis

25,611,883.02

31,340,053.18

Income from the difference between the investment
costs of acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures and share in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets of the investee when investing

993,558,775.01

5,456,162.00

Profit or loss on debt restructuring

-751,177.33

1,695,113.00

Income from business combinations involving entities
not under common control that is achieved in stages
and involves multiple transactions

-1,711,806.78

Other non-operating income and expenses other than
the above

-220,484,566.39

995,512,062.69

-105,364,740.28

Less: Effect of income tax

580,163,559.94

639,137,781.42

781,094,388.83

Effect of minority interests (net of tax)

763,279,498.19

756,754,378.69

1,776,084,568.70

Total

4,061,495,288.08

7,126,024,786.69

5,958,096,678.77
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The Company shall explain about the recognition of non-recurring profit or loss that are not listed in the
Explanatory Announcement on Information Disclosure for Companies Offering Their Securities to the
Public No. 1 Non-recurring Profit or Loss as non-recurring profit or loss with significant amounts and
the recognition of non-recurring profit or loss listed in the Explanatory Announcement on Information
Disclosure for Companies Offering Their Securities to the Public No. 1 Non-recurring Profit or Loss as
recurring profit or loss.

CApplicable VN/A

X1l  Items measured at fair value

VApplicable CIN/A

Unit: RMB

Items Opening balance Ending balance Changes Effect %%S;Ofits of
Financial assets held for trading 45,230,022,623.99 | 46,687,571,217.37 1,457,548593.38 -183,408,132.39
Financing receivables 11,550,691,647.05 | 16,717,326,180.65 5,166,634,533.60
doetgggif:"em assets - Interbank 26,138,075,534.51 | 47,847,818,204.10 21,709,742,669.59
Other debt investments 843,316,530.00 4,569,999,800.00 3,726,683,270.00
:ﬂg’terzt:qf:t‘: in other equity 17,194,580,995.63 |  13,713,232,621.62 -3,481,357,374.01
Sstsl‘i; non-current financial 16,624,603,978.18 |  22,775,688,309.19 6,151,084,331.01 1,157,170,576.70
frg‘dai'r‘fgia' liabilities held for 51,500,458.60 50,226,585.32 -1,273,873.28 -211,452.94
Other non-current liabilities 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
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project” management mechanism. After the launch, IM Motors LS6 quickly jumped to the top of the
monthly sales list of medium and large pure electric SUVs in China. In the 2023 China Hybrid Vehicle
Extreme Challenge, the Roewe D7 won the double champion of “pure electric cruising range and fuel
consumption” for a comprehensive range of 1,700 kilometers.

Secondly, create industry-leading technologies. The Company launched industry-leading technologies
such as “quasi-900V” double silicon carbidemotor and high-performance “ultra-efficient hybrid DMH”,
and realized mass production and application. Phased development of full-stack 3.0 intelligent vehicle
architecture, energy closed-loop technology, and the Vehicle Motion Control (VMC) was completed. IM
Motors obtained the first batch of L3 self-driving vehicle tests licenses and declared the Intelligent
Connected Vehicle Access Pilot Project issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
of the People’s Republic of China. Meanwhile, the Company continued to promote independent R&D
upgrading and commercialization of technologies such as fuel cell, automatic driving and cloud
platform.

Thirdly, expand the “new track” cooperation. The Company signed a Memorandum of Understanding
with Audi to jointly develop various new intelligent electric vehicles for the Chinese market. The
Company integrated the superior resources with GM, and established a new software and digital center
in SAIC GM. The Company also set up a joint venture with Qingtao Energy to accelerate the
technological R&D and industrialization of semi-solid and all-solid batteries. In addition, the Company
continued to deepen the strategic cooperation with OPPO, Horizon Robotics and other enterprises in
fields of “ecological domain” and chips with large computing capacity. The Company also established
the “key laboratories” with Hunan University, Shanghai University and other institutions to carry out in-
depth university-enterprise cooperation in the fields of advanced vehicle production technology and
cyber security of intelligent connected vehicles.

2. Strive to achieve a better operation quality quarter by quarter through adjusting the structure and
strengthening the resilience

Firstly, accelerate the development of new energy products. The sales of new products such as IM
Motors LS6 and Roewe D7 increased rapidly after the launch and became hot sellers in the market
segment. SAIC Volkswagen ID.3 adjusted the marketing strategy, achieving monthly sales of over
10,000 for 4 consecutive months and becoming the “best pure electric vehicle seller of joint ventures”.
SAIC GM launched the 430km range version of the Buick Velite6 series and the E5 Pioneer Edition to
accelerate the brand influence in the new energy vehicle market. The monthly sales of SGMW Binguo
and Xingguang have ranked among the top in the segment market, and the third-generation “Macaron”
consolidated Wuling Hongguang MINI series’ leading position in the global small and micro electric
vehicle market. During the reporting period, the Company’s sales of new energy passenger vehicles
above RMB 150,000 accounted for 43.6%, representing an increase of 19.2 pct fr"

9/244



SAIC MOTOR ANNUAL REPORT 2023

The overseas sales volume continued to maintain a leading position in the domestic industry. The
Company’s self-owned brands accounted for 92% of overseas sales, with the annual global sales of the
MG brand exceeding 800,000, and the knock-out products such as ZS/AP/HS series continued to
maintain rapid growth. Especially in the European market, the single-month delivery volume of MG
brand has stabilized at more than 20,000, making Europe the Company’s first “200,000 vehicles”
overseas regional market. In addition, the MG brand has not only ranked among the top two in the pure
electric vehicle market in the UK and Spain, but also among the top ten in all major global markets, with
the main product, the MG4 EV, winning more than 30 prestigious overseas awards, such as the “Model
of the Year in the UK, France, Germany, and Australia”. In addition, the export of Company’s MAXUS
and other commercial vehicles for the year reached the new level of 100,000.

3. Consolidate the development foundations including the operational mechanism and governance
system by strengthening supporting efforts and enhancing vitality
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“Outstanding Practical Cases of the Board of Directors” by the China Association for Public Companies.
Furthermore, to protect the interests of shareholders, the Company distributes cash dividends in strict
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association. It has initiated the third round
of share repurchases and cancelled approximately 108 million repurchased shares from the first round.
The Company also actively participated in service support work for the 6th China International Import
Expo and, in cooperation with organizations such as the Hanhong Love Charity Foundation, engaged in
various public welfare undertakings, continuously enhancing its responsible and trustworthy corporate
image.
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power drive systems, chassis systems, interior and exterior trim systems, and components and
systems of new energy and smart vehicles such as batteries, electric drives and electronic control.
The main affiliated auto parts and components enterprises of the Company include HASCO, SNAT,
UAES, SAIC Transmission, SEAT, SAIC CATL and CATL SAIC.

3. Mobility and services segment. It is mainly engaged in logistics and transportation, mobility
services, energy saving, charging and swapping services, etc. Anji logistics, an affiliated company of
the Company, is the largest contract logistics enterprise in China. In 2023, its domestic vehicle
transportation volume exceeded 6.4 million. The Company is also actively promoting new services
such as charging and swapping, photovoltaic power generation, hazardous waste disposal and power
battery recycling to help achieve the strategic goal of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”.

4. Finance segment. It is mainly engaged in auto finance, corporate finance, insurance sales and
industrial financial investment. Among them, the auto finance business is mainly to provide
financing services for dealers and end customers; the corporate finance business is mainly to provide
fund deposit and loan, settlement, bills, foreign exchange and various agency services for affiliated
member enterprises of the Company within the scope allowed by the regulatory authority; the
insurance sales business is mainly to provide intermediary services of auto insurance for consumers;
the industrial financial investment business mainly focuses on equity investments in the upstream
and downstream for strategic transformation of electrification and the intelligent transformation.

5. Overseas business segment. The Company has initially built an overseas automobile industry chain
integrating R&D, manufacturing, marketing, finance, logistics, parts and components and second
hand cars. The Company has set up 3 overseas vehicle manufacturing bases in Thailand, Indonesia
and India, and more than 2,000 overseas marketing and service networks, and its products and
services have been introduced into more than 100 countries and regions around the world.

Innovative technology segment. It is mainly engaged in the R&D of core technologies in new
energy, software, artificial intelligence, big data, Internet of Things and other new fields, mainly
including Z-one Tech, SHPT, DIAS, Fin Shine and other “little giants of science and innovation”.
The Company empowers industrial transformation and upgrading through innovative technologies,
and actively promotes the industrialization and commercialization of innovation achievements by
taking advantage of the capital market.

1V. Analysis on core competitiveness during the reporting period

VApplicable ON/A

Firstly, the Company reshapes new system advantages for users’ new needs. The Company is “user
centered” to speed up business model transition. In the context of the runoff economy, the Company is
actively exploring ways to enhance its operation and service capabilities of online customer acquisition
and direct user connection through high-quality content output and the use of intelligent and digital
technologies. The Company continues to promote the transformation and upgrading of organizational
structure, business system and operation mechanism through deepening marketing reform, which makes
the whole business chain closely focus on users’ needs, stand in users’ shoes and better create value for
them. In transforming to new tracks, the Company gives full play to the advantages such as user bases,
service networks, industrial layouts, stable cash flows and mature vehicle manufacturing systems
accumulated on traditional tracks, thus continuously consolidating the business system foundation,
improving the resource support capability and promoting brand rejuvenation.

Secondly, the Company creates new technological advantages for new industry tracks. Based on the
concept of “scenarios create value, software defines vehicles, data determines experience”, the Company
is accelerating the enhancement of its competitive advantages in the field of electric intelligent
connection core technology. To create a “powerful heart”, the Company will take the lead in mass-
producing vehicles equipped with semi-solid-state batteries, achieving an increase in energy density of
over 50%, a reduction in battery costs of over 10%, and a cruising range exceeding 1,000 kilometers,
with improved safety and reliability. To create an “intelligent brain,” starting from 2024, SAIC’s full-
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stack 3.0 intelligent vehicle solution will be gradually implemented, and new products will leverage
domain convergence technology to reduce the number of controllers by half, increase data bandwidth by
five times, reduce wiring harness length by 30%, and improve over-the-air (OTA) update speed by 70%.
To create an “agile body,” the Company’s ground-breaking Vehicle Motion Control (VMC) platform has
already achieved functions such as steer-by-wire and crab-walking, and will be gradually put into mass
production starting from 2024,

Thirdly, the Company builds new cooperation advantages with partners for new development in the
future. The Company inherits and carries forward the cooperation culture, always adheres to creating
win-win results with global partners, and constantly expands new cooperation space that is wider, higher
and deeper. On the one hand, the Company continues to deepen the strategic cooperation with joint
venture partners, and brings its pioneering advantages of “software-defined automobiles” to the joint
venture through joint research and sharing of innovative technologies; at the same time, the Company
accelerates the effective output of the advantages of independent innovation system to the overseas
market, and continue to cultivate and develop the global market. On the other hand, the Company
implements national strategies, focusing on key links such as green and low-carbon development and
self-reliance in science and technology, and adheres to independent innovation and open cooperation in
terms of new energy industrial chain construction, research and application of intelligent vehicles,
artificial intelligence algorithms, chip design and manufacturing, network data security, digital industrial
ecology, etc., thus accelerating the resilience enhancement of the industrial supply chain. Making full
use of the market--oriented mechanism and capital market, the Company continuously expands the
“circle of friends”, jointly builds a new industrial ecology and promotes high-quality development of the
automobile industry.
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V  Operations in the reporting period

During the reporting period, the Company achieved total revenue of RMB 744.705 billion, an increase
of 0.09% year-on-year, net profit attributable to shareholders of listed companies of RMB 14.106
billion, a decrease of 12.48% year-on-year, and weighted average ROE of 4.98%, a decrease of 0.86 pct
compared with the previous year.

(1) Analysis on main operations

1. Analysis on changes in relevant accounts in income statement and cash flow statement

Unit: RMB
Accounts 2023 2022 Changes (%0)
Revenue 726,199,110,369.74 | 720,087,528,302.03 0.72
Cost of sales 652,206,818,063.04 | 651,700,777,153.06 0.08
Selling expenses 29,878,918,085.65 30,175,402,864.14 -0.98
Administrative expenses 24,240,271,451.56 25,641,378,773.93 -5.46
Financial expenses -156,683,993.96 -764,406,025.70 Not applicable
R&D expenses 18,365,413,280.29 | 18,030,919,437.98 1.86
Net cash flows from operating 4233442253536 | 9,504,540,284.51 345.41
activities
Q'Cif\fli‘fez flows from investing -42,233,896,179.71 |  -6,778,783,682.67 Not applicable
Net cash flows from financing -10,058,382,110.52 |  9,135,383,345.80 210.10
activities

Explanation on changes in financial expenses: Mainly due to the year-on-year increase in interest costs
on borrowings from subsidiaries of the Company.

Explanation on changes in net cash flows from operating activities: Mainly due to the moderate
adjustment of the loan scale by the Company's subsidiary, SFC, according to business needs.
Explanation on changes in net cash flows from investing activities: Mainly due to the adjustment of the
allocation of financial assets by the Company's subsidiary, SFC, based on the liquidity requirements for
the year, and the cash received from investments has a year-on-year decrease.

Explanation on changes in net cash flows from financing activities: Mainly due to the year-on-year
increase in cash repayments of borrowings by the Company for the current year.

Details of significant changes in business type, composition or sources of profit of the Company in the

current period
CApplicable VN/A
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2. Income and cost analysis

VApplicable CIN/A

The details are as follows:

(1) Analysis on main operations by industry, product, geographical region and sales mode

Unit: RMB
Main operations by industry

Changes | Changes | Changes

By industry Revenue Cost of sales Gross_ margin in In cost In gross

ratio (%) revenue of sales margin

(%) (%) ratio (%)
Increased
Auto manufacturing 726,199,110,369.74 | 652,206,818,063.04 10.19 0.72 0.08 by 0.58
pct

Finance 18,506,022,552.46 2,689,301,717.27 85.47 -
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MG Motor India Private Limited Vehicles 61,008 62,010 1,768 19.54 27.86 -37.72
Others Vehicles 39,688 41,559 1,604 -4.18 -1.61 -53.86
Total Vehicles 5,025,295 | 5,020,865 97,618 -5.61 -5.31 5.31

Explanation on production and sales

Others mainly include Shanghai Sunwin Bus Co., Ltd., SAIC HONGYAN Automobile Co., Ltd. and
Nanjing Iveco Automobile Co., Ltd., etc.
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(3) Implementation of significant purchase and sales contracts
CApplicable VN/A

(4) Cost analysis

Unit: RMB
By industry
. Proportion . Proportion
By industry Cost items &Tfeunqt '2;23 to total An:%urntell[} ége to total Ch(%/”ges
P costs (%) prior p costs (%) °
Raw materials,
Auto labor salaries and
manufacturing wages, 652,206,818,063.04 99.59 | 651,700,777,153.06 99.30 0.08
depreciation,
energy, etc.
Labor salaries and
. wages,
Finance de[?reciation, 2,689,301,717.27 0.41 4,607,414,292.43 0.70 -41.63
energy, etc.
Total 654,896,119,780.31 100.00 | 656,308,191,445.49 100.00 -0.22
By product
: Proportion : Proportion
By product Cost items QJT?eUnT I(?r}g?j to total Arp%:'ntelpi gge to total Ch(g/njqes
P costs (%) prior p costs (%) °
Raw materials,
labor salaries and
Vehicles wages, 476,102,052,696.18 72.70 | 482,122,361,279.85 73.46 -1.25
depreciation,
energy, etc.
Raw materials,
labor salaries and
Auto parts wages, 147,286,946,783.94 22.49 | 130,323,730,495.11 19.86 13.02
depreciation,
energy, etc.
Raw materials,
- labor salaries and
Service trade and | yages, 28,817,818,582.92 440 | 39,254,685378.10 5.98 -26.59
depreciation,
energy, etc.
Labor salaries and
- wages,
Finance depreciation, 2,689,301,717.27 0.41 4,607,414,292.43 0.70 -41.63
energy, etc.
Total 654,896,119,780.31 100.00 | 656,308,191,445.49 100.00 -0.22

(5) Changes in consolidation scope due to changes in equity of major subsidiaries during the

reporting period
VApplicable ON/A

For details, refer to Section X, (IX) in this report.

(6) Major changes or adjustments in the Company's business, products or services during the
reporting period
CApplicable VN/A

(7) Major customers and suppliers
A. Major customers of the Company
VApplicable ON/A

Sales of the top five customers amounted to RMB 90,204.6557 million, accounting for 12.43% of the
annual total sales. Among the top five customers, sales from related parties amounted to RMB
7,014.1161 million , accounting for 0.97% of the total annual sales.

Situations where the proportion of sales to a single customer exceeded 50% of the total sales, and there
were new customers among the top 5 customers or high dependency on a few customers during the
reporting period

CApplicable VN/A
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B. Major suppliers of the Company

VApplicable ON/A

Purchase from the top five suppliers amounted to RMB 298,838.6817 million, accounting for 45.82% of
the total annual purchase. Among the top five suppliers, purchase from related parties amounted to RMB
17,061.0847 million, accounting for 2.62% of the total annual purchase.

Situations where the proportion of purchase from a single supplier exceeded 50% of the total purchase,
and there were new suppliers among the top 5 suppliers or high dependency on a few suppliers during
the reporting period.

CApplicable VN/A

3. Expenses
VApplicable CIN/A

Unit: RMB

Items 2023 2022 Changes (%)
Selling expenses 29,878,918,085.65 30,175,402,864.14 -0.98
Administrative expenses 24,240,271,451.56 25,641,378,773.93 -5.46
R&D expenses 18,365,413,289.29 18,030,919,437.98 1.86
Financial expenses -156,683,993.96 -764,406,025.70 Not applicable
Income tax expenses 5,912,843,489.27 5,228,427,640.03 13.09

Note: The changes in financial expenses compared to the same period last year were mainly due to the
year-on-year increase in interest costs on borrowings from subsidiaries of the Company.

4. R&D expenditures
(1) R&D expenditures
VApplicable ON/A

Unit: RMB
R&D expenditures expensed in the current period 18,365,413,289.29
R&D expenditures capitalized in the current period 3,647,833,203.82
Total R&D expenditures 22,013,246,493.11
Proportion of R&D expenditures to revenue (%) 3.03
Proportion of capitalization of R&D expenditures (%) 16.57
(2) R&D personnel
VApplicable ON/A
Number of R&D personnel in the Company 33,827
Proportion of R&D personnel to the total employees in the Company (%) 16.7
Education background of R&D personnel

Category Number
Postgraduate and above 14,445
Bachelor and below 19,382

Age of R&D personnel

Category Number
Below 35 years old (including 35 years old) 21,727
35 to 45 years old (excluding 35 years old, including 45 years old) 9,443
Over 45 years old 2,657
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(3) Explanation
VApplicable ON/A

Amid the strategic opportunity for new energy vehicles’ accelerated global penetration, the Company
must continue to invest in R&D, improve innovation efficiency, produce intelligent EVs that benefit
global users, and promote the market-oriented development of new energy vehicles on a global scale.
SAIC's current efforts are in the following three areas:

Expanding overseas business layout. In 2023, China has become the world's largest exporter of
autos. As the largest auto exporter in China, SAIC sold more than 1.2 million vehicles overseas in
2023, supported b%/ models such as MG4, EZS and eHS in the global market. To better serve

e Company has initiated the site selection process for the European auto
manufacturing base to realize local manufacturing, sales and service. 2024 marks the 100th
anniversary of the MG brand. The Company will continue to respond to user needs and produce
intelligent EV models for the global market, allowing "SAIC Manufacturing”" to benefit global

Focusing on user experience in different scenarios. According to different regions and scenarios, the
Company will launch new energy vehicles with different driving modes to meet users' needs for
more economical and safer driving. In terms of pure EVs, according to the principle of "closed-loop
energy"”, the Company will optimize R&D in low resistance, lightweight, integrated thermal
management, low-voltage load and other aspects of the vehicles, and challenge the new record of
pure EV energy consumption of 9.5 km/kWh, enabling users to drive more miles with less
electricity consumption. In terms of hybrid, the Company has launched a new generation of DMH
super hybrid system. With its modular, integrated and exclusive design, the system enables new
energy vehicles to operate in more scenarios, allowing users to not worry about miles, but also have
a good experience with electrification. The Company has also endeavoured to improve the thermal
efficiency of the hybrid drive system to 47%, allowing users to drive more miles at fewer costs. As
for fuel cells, based on the demonstration operation in the past two years and targeting long-distance
heavy-duty commercial vehicle scenarios, the Company has launched fuel cell stacks with high
power (over 250KW), long life (over 20,000 hours), and high efficiency (for common power use,
with overall efficiency higher than 46%). This will effectively reduce carbon emissions from
commercial vehicles, especially long-distance heavy-duty commercial vehicles, and promote the

1.

European users, t

consumers.
2.

development of hydrogen energy.
3.

Accelerating the implementation of forward-looking technology. The Company adheres to the
principle of "scenarios create value, data determines experience, software defines vehicles". With
the introduction of “central computing + regional control”, the full stack 3.0 intelligent vehicle
solution has been fully implemented, achieving the integration of "cabin, driving, computing and
connectivity" domain control into one. This enables the number of domain controllers to be cut in
half, data bandwidth to be increased by 5 times, wire lengths to be reduced by 30%, OTA speed to
be increased by 70%, deep integration of the IOT ecosystem, and closed-loop data. In addition,
through breakthroughs in the "vehicle central coordinated motion controller (VMC) technology", the
Company has fully integrated functions such as braking, driving, steering and suspension control
into the VMC control. This helps realize centralized control of the vehicle body with 3 directions
and 6 degrees of freedom, ensuring that the vehicle remains stable in different driving modes and
road conditions, providing ultimate safe and comfort experience. Based on the integrated
improvement of vehicle electronic architecture and chassis control, the Company has balanced low
vehicle cost and good experience, enabling users to choose more intelligent new energy vehicles. In
addition, through the mass production and application of the world's leading semi-solid batteries in
various models, iteration of battery products and processes is accelerating, achieving a great
reduction in the cost of power batteries while improving safety performance and energy density,
enabling users to choose more cost-effective new energy vehicles.

(4) Reasons for significant changes in the composition of R&D personnel and the impact on the

development of the Company in the future

O Applicable v N/A

5. Cash flows
VApplicable ON/A
Unit: RMB
Items 2023 2022 Changes (%)
aNC‘i}VCiiisehsﬂo""s from operating 42,334,422,535.36 9,504,540,284.51 345.41
Net cash flows from investing activities -42,233,896,179.71 -6,778,783,682.67 Not applicable
Net cash flows from financing -10,058,382,110.52 9,135,383,345.80 -210.10
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| activities | | | |
Note: Analysis on changes in cash flows is set out in the analysis on changes in relevant accounts in
income statement and cash flow statement.
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(11) Explanation on significant changes in profit arising from non-main operations

CApplicable VN/A

(111) Analysis on assets and liabilities

VApplicable CIN/A

1. Assets and liabilities

Unit: RMB

Proportion of Proportion of endin
Items Ending balance ending balance in Ending balance baFIJance in 2022 tog Changes
in 2023 2023 to total assets in 2022 o (%)
(%) total assets (%0)

Notes receivable 9,093,233,742.03 0.90 5,875,419,207.62 0.59 54.77
Financing receivables 16,717,326,180.65 1.66 | 11,550,691,647.05 1.17 44.73
Financial assets purchased 7,378,279,765.49 0.73 | 4,619,815,075.30 047 59.71
under agreements to resell
Loans and advances 65,276,170,042.15 6.48 | 97,977,615,599.55 9.90 -33.38
Other debt investments 4,569,999,800.00 0.45 843,316,530.00 0.09 44191
aostsg'isr non-current financial | 5, 775 688 309,19 2.26 | 16,624,603,978.18 1.68 37.00
Non-current liabilities tobe | 7 365 163 161 79 2.72 | 39,543,710,127.34 399 | -30.80
settled within one year
Other current liabilities 3,142,690,818.06 0.31 1,992,422,065.73 0.20 57.73
Long-term borrowings 51,454,950,549.85 5.11 | 34,555,464,051.99 3.49 48.91
Deferred income 11,560,896,427.08 1.15 | 19,178,087,544.09 1.94 -39.72

Other explanations
1) Notes receivable increased by 54.77% compared with the ending balance of the previous period,
mainly due to the increase in the trade acceptance notes receivable of the subsidiaries of the Company.
2) Financing receivables increased by 44.73% compared with the ending balance of the previous period,
mainly due to the increase in the notes receivable of financing receivables of the subsidiaries of the
Company.
3) Financial assets purchased under agreements to resell increased by 59.71% compared with the ending
balance of the previous period, mainly due to the increase in the financial assets purchased under
agreements to resell of the subsidiaries of the Company.
4) Loans and advances decreased by 33.38% compared with the ending balance of the previous period,
mainly due to the moderate adjustment of the loan scale by the Company's subsidiary, SFC, according to
business needs.
5) Other debt investments increased by 441.91% compared with the ending balance of the previous
period, mainly due to the increase in the bonds held by the subsidiaries of the Company.
6) Other non-current financial assets increased by 37% compared with the ending balance of the
previous period, mainly due to the increase in the shareholding of unlisted companies of subsidiaries of
the Company.
7) Non-current liabilities to be settled within one year decreased by 30.80% compared with the ending
balance of the previous period, mainly due to the decrease in the long-term borrowings to be settled
within one year of the Company.
8) Other current liabilities increased by 57.73% compared with the ending balance of the previous
period, mainly due to the increase in the short-term commercial paper of the subsidiaries of the
Company.
9) Long-term borrowings increased by 48.91% compared with the ending balance of the previous period,
mainly due to the increase in the long-term borrowings for business development of the Company.
10) Deferred income decreased by 39.72% compared with the ending balance of the previous period,
mainly due to the decrease of the interest received in advance of the Company's subsidiary, SFC.
2. Overseas assets
v Applicable O N/A

(1) Assetsize
Including: Overseas assets RMB 97,441,732,072.68 (Unit: RMB), accounting for 9.68% of total assets.

(2) Explanation on the relatively high proportion of overseas assets
CApplicable VN/A
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3. Restriction of significant assets as at the end of the reporting period

CApplicable VN/A

4. Other explanations
CApplicable VN/A

(1V) Analysis on operation data in the industry

VApplicable ON/A
The details are as follows:

Analysis on operation data for auto manufacturing

1. Production capacity
VApplicable ON/A

Existing production capacity
VApplicable ON/A

Unit: 10 Thousand vehicles

Designed

Maior plants roduction Production capacity in the | Utilization
jor p P . reporting period rate (%0)
capacity

i@lc Volkswagen Automotive Co., 208.8 120.2 58
SAIC General Motors Co., Ltd. 190.8 101.8 53
SAIC Motor Corporation Limited
Passenger Vehicle Branch 104.0 9.9 %
SAIC GM Wauling Co., Ltd. 176.0 140.4 80
SAIC MAXUS Vehicle Co., Ltd. 37.5 22.7 61
SAIC Motor CP Co., Ltd. 7.2 2.0 28
SAIC-GM-Wuling Motor Indonesia 6.0 2.6 43
MG Motor India Private Limited 5.6 6.1 109
Others (Note 1) 13.7 4.0 29

Note 1: Others mainly include Shanghai Sunwin Bus Co., Ltd., SAIC HONGYAN Automobile Co., Ltd.

and Nanjing lveco Automobile Co., Ltd.

Capacity under construction
CApplicable VN/A

Capacity calculation criteria
VApplicable ON/A

The calculation of designed production capacity is on the basis of 250 working days per year, and 16
working hours per day, namely 4,000 working hours for one year. “Production capacity in the reporting
period” refers to actual production in the reporting period; utilization rate is the actual production in the
reporting period divided by designed production capacity.
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2. Sales and production of vehicles

VApplicable CIN/A
By vehicle type
VApplicable ON/A

Sales (Vehicles

Production (Vehicles)

Categories 2023 2022 Ch(i‘/r("?es 2023 2022 Ckzizfes

Basic passenger vehicle 2,434,349 2,625,382 -7.28 2,445,384 2,637,673 -7.29
Sports utility vehicle (SUV) 1,436,484 1,506,765 -4.66 1,428,852 1,528,448 -6.52
Multi purpose vehicle (MPV) 368,475 458,560 -19.65 369,905 459,789 -19.55
Cross passenger vehicle 166,675 204,174 -18.37 165,476 202,323 -18.21
Bus 112,954 90,004 25.50 113,797 88,734 28.25
Truck 501,928 417,759 20.15 501,881 406,755 23.39
Total 5,020,865 5,302,644 -5.31 5,025,295 5,323,722 -5.61
By region

VApplicable ON/A

Sales in domestic market (\VVehicles)

Sales in overseas market (Vehicles)

Categories 2023 2022 Ch(i‘/:)ges 2023 2022 Ch("j/r(‘)?es
Basic passenger vehicle 2,010,640 2,319,594 -13.32 423,709 305,788 38.56
Sports utility vehicle (SUV) 780,640 947,809 -17.64 655,844 558,956 17.33
Multi purpose vehicle (MPV) 349,541 420,613 -16.90 18,934 37,947 -50.10
Cross passenger vehicle 140,892 174,099 -19.07 25,783 30,075 -14.27
Bus 86,280 75,769 13.87 26,674 14,235 87.38
Truck 444,630 347,301 28.02 57,298 70,458 -18.68
Total 3,812,623 4,285,185 -11.03 1,208,242 1,017,459 18.75

3. Sales and production of auto parts

VApplicable ON/A

The Company's business of auto parts is mainly operated by HASCO, (stock code: 600741), a subsidiary
controlled by the Company. For details of its business in 2023, refer to its annual report 2023 published

on www.sse.com.ch by HASCO (600741).

Byp bp! Byp
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4. New energy vehicles business

VApplicable CIN/A

Production capacity of new energy vehicles

VApplicable CIN/A

Maior olants Designed production Production capacity in the Utilization
Jorp capacity (Vehicles) reporting period (Vehicles) rate (%)

SAIC Volkswagen Automotive
Co., Ltd. i 126,758 i
Including: SAIC Volkswagen
MEB Plant 240,000 106,547 44
SAIC General Motors Co., Ltd. - 98,374 -
SAIC Motor Corporation Limited
Passenger Vehicle Branch i 336,699 i
SAIC GM Wuling Co., Ltd. - 451,808 -
SAIC MAXUS Vehicle Co., Ltd. - 35,422 -
IM Motors Co., Ltd. - 38,442 -
SAIC Motor CP Co., Ltd. - 449 -
MG Motor India Private Limited - 15,385 -
SAIC—G.M—WuImg Motor i 8,684 i
Indonesia
Others - 2,519 -

Note 1: Except for SAIC Volkswagen MEB Plant, the Company's other new energy products are
manufactured on the same line and share production capacity with traditional ICE vehicles. The
Company can adjust the two types of products in line with market conditions and implement flexible

production.

Note 2: Others mainly include Shanghai Sunwin Bus Co., Ltd., SAIC HONGYAN Automobile Co., Ltd.
and Nanjing lveco Automobile Co., Ltd.

Sales and production of new energy vehicles

VApplicable ON/A

Sales (Vehicles) Production (Vehicles)
. Changes Changes
Categories 2023 2022 (%) 2023 2022 (%)
Passenger Vehicle 1,089,191 1,031,465 5.60 | 1,080,488 | 1,048,999 3.00
Commercial vehicle 33,717 41,965 -19.65 34,052 43,585 -21.87
Total 1,122,908 1,073,430 461 | 1114540 | 1,092,584 2.01

Income and subsidy of new energy vehicles

VApplicable ON/A

Unit: RMB 10 Thousand

Categories Revenue Subsidy for_new energy Proportion of subsidy to revenue
vehicles (%)
Passenger Vehicle 12,573,416 13,680 0.11
Commercial vehicle 820,082 76 0.01

Note: Pure EVs and plug-in hybrids no longer received subsidies from 2023. The subsidy for new energy
vehicles in the table is the expectation amount for fuel cell vehicles in 2023.
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5.  Automotive finance
VApplicable CON/A
Automotive finance
VApplicable ON/A
Unit;: RMB 100 Million

Name of subsidiary | SAIC Finance Co., Ltd.
General information
ReglsFered Total assets Net assets Revenue Operating profit Net_
capital profit
153.80 1,926.39 476.17 99.47

25/244




SAIC MOTOR ANNUAL REPORT 2023

(V) Investment analysis

General analysis on equity investments

VApplicable CIN/A

The Company is an auto manufacturing enterprise with an extensive business layout and various types of
investments. At the end of the reporting period, the ending balance of the Company's long-term equity
investments was RMB 66.701 billion, increased by RMB 2.056 billion or 3.18% compared with opening
balance. Details of investments are set out in the notes in this report.

1. Significant equity investments
CApplicable VN/A

2. Significant non-equity investments
OApplicable VN/A
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3. Financial assets at fair value

VApplicable ON/A
Unit: RMB
Profit or loss from Accumulated changes Impairment . L
Category of assets Opening balance changes in fair value in fair value included provided in Purchase in 2023 Disposals/Redemption in Other Ending balance
: . h 2023 changes
in 2023 in equity 2023
fr;réairr‘];'a' assets held for 45,230,022,623.99 -183,408,132.39 269,906,892,885.90 -268,265,936,160.13 46,687,571,217.37
Financing receivables 11,550,691,647.05 2,506,139.16 110,290,082,166.62 -105,125,953,772.18 16,717,326,180.65
Other current assets - 26,138,075,534.51 22,261,879.24 47,843,529,612.65 -26,156,048,822.30 47,847,818,204.10
Interbank deposits
Other debt investments 843,316,530.00 16,454,842.99 4,553,487,148.62 -843,258,721.61 4,569,999,800.00
prwestiments In other equlty 17,194,580,095.63 -2,764,626,540.89 14,406,835.33 -731,137,668.45 13,713,232,621.62
Sstsr:et; non-current financial 16,624,603,978.18 1,157,170,576.70 7,244,511,248.08 -2,250,597,493.77 22,775,688,309.19
Total 117,581,300,309.36 973,762,444.31 -2,723,403,679.50 439,852,909,897.20 -403,372,932,638.44 152,311,636,332.93
Investments in securities
VApplicable ON/A
Unit: RMB Million
- Opening Profit or Accumulated Income or Ending
. . Initial loss from L .
Securities Securities " L . Source of | balance of . changes in fair Purchase | Disposals losses from balance of -
Securities abbreviation investment A changes in : . ; 8 . A Accounting item
type code funds carrying - ; value included in in 2023 in 2023 investments carrying
cost fair value in - .
amount 2023 equity in 2023 amount
Investments in other equity
Stocks 600036 | CMB 3681.19 |Own funds 11,555.29 -2,927.59 8,627.70 instruments
Stocks 688779 | CHANGYUAN LICO 169.50 |Own funds 285.77 78.29 137.89 8.81 78.40 t':rg‘d";?];'a' assets  held  for
Stocks 688772 | ZHUHAI COSMX 3472 [Own funds 40.04 9.20 49.25 t':rg‘d"}?];'a' assets  held for
Stocks 688110 | Dosilicon 99.50 [Own funds 86.28 28.91 123.28 8.09 t':rg‘d"}?];'a' assets  held for
Stocks 688162 JEE 32.75 Own funds 30.84
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Explanation on investments in securities

VApplicable ON/A

1. The above are securities directly invested by SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

2. Value-added tax (“VVAT”) has been deducted from the investment income column in the current period.
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Investments in private equity

VApplicable ON/A

1. Qingdao SAIC Innovation and Upgrading Industry Equity Investment Fund Partnership (L.P.)
(“Qingdao SAIC Innovation Fund™)

1) Establishment or expansion of the fund: Qingdao SAIC Innovation Fund was established on 12
January 2021. In order to explore the opportunities brought by industrial restructuring and innovation,
and to deepen the layout in the field of new energy and intelligent connectivity, in May 2022, the
Company made an additional contribution of RMB 7.5 billion to the fund and completed the change of
the filing on 11 May 2022. The fund focuses on the investment field of auto industry chain and related
fields, including but not limited to new energy, intelligent connectivity, sharing, intelligent
manufacturing and new materials. The total capital contribution of the fund after the additional
contribution was RMB 13.5495 billion, of which SAIC Motor contributed RMB 13.5 billion, holding
99.63% of equity, SAIC Financial Holding contributed RMB 45 million, holding 0.33% of equity,
Shangqi Capital contributed RMB 2.25 million, holding 0.02% of equity, and Hengxu Capital
contributed RMB 2.25 million, holding 0.02% of equity.

2) Operation and progress of the fund: As at 31 December 2023, the total paid-in capital of the fund was
RMB 13.295 billion, investing in 23 projects and 6 sub funds, with a total contribution of RMB 11.705
billion.

2. Jiaxing SAIC Chuangyong Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Jiaxing
SAIC Chuangyong Fund”)

1) Establishment or expansion of the fund: Jiaxing SAIC Chuangyong Fund was established on 23 June
2022 and completed the filing on 13 July 2022. The initial contribution size was RMB 3 billion, among
which SAIC Financial Holding contributed RMB 2.95 billion, holding 98.3333% of equity, SAIC
Venture Capital contributed RMB 48 million, holding 1.6000% of equity, Shangqi Capital contributed
RMB 1 million, holding 0.0333% of equity, and Hengxu Capital contributed RMB 1 million, holding
0.0333% of equity. The fund mainly invested in sub funds and direct investment projects, focusing on
areas including “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”, intelligent connectivity, auto electronics,
advanced manufacturing, new materials, semiconductors, multiple extensions of the auto industry such
as metaverse and information technology application innovation industry, and moderate layout of
innovative business.

2) Operation and progress of the fund: As at 31 December 2023, the total paid-in capital of the fund was
RMB 2.229 billion, investing in 33 projects and 4 sub funds, with a total contribution of RMB 2.225
billion.

3. Shandong Shangqi Shangao New Power Equity Investment Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Shangao Fund”)

1) Establishment or expansion of the fund: Shangao Fund was established on 8 June 2022 and completed
the filing on 7 July 2022. The initial contribution size was RMB 0.807 billion, among which Shandong
Hi speed Group contributed RMB 399 million, holding 49.4424% of equity, SNAT contributed RMB
199 million, holding 24.6592% of equity, SAIC Financial Holding contributed RMB 199 million,
holding 24.6592% of equity, Shanghai Qisu Business contributed 8 million, holding 0.9913% of equity,
Shandong High-speed Beiyin Investment contributed RMB 1 million, holding 0.1239% of equity, and
Shangqi Capital contributed RMB 1 million, holding 0.1239% of equity. The fund focused on the auto
industry chain, with emphasis on direct investment projects in the field of auto new energy (including
drive motors and power batteries), hydrogen fuel cell industry chain, engine aftertreatment, aided driving
and autopilot, auto electronics and semiconductors, and new auto materials.

2) Operation and progress of the fund: As at 31 December 2023, the total paid-in capital of the fund was
RMB 0.803 billion, investing in 15 projects, with a total contribution of RMB 0.706 billion.

4. Nanjing Junhongtianyin Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Nanjing
Junhongtianyin Fund™)

1) Establishment or expansion of the fund: Nanjing Junhongtianyin Fund was established on 28
September 2022 and completed the filing on 1 November 2022. The initial contribution size was RMB
1.551 billion, among which SAIC Financial Holding contributed RMB 1,400 million, holding 90.26% of
equity, Jiangning High Tech Fund contributed RMB 150 million, holding 9.67% of equity, and Nanjing
Hengyishang contributed RMB 1 million, holding 0.06% of equity. The fund was the link fund of
Suzhou Shengilina Green Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) ("Hengxu Green
Mobility Fund™), which contributed RMB 1.55 billion to Hengxu Green Mobility Fund and held
41.2234% of equity. Hengxu Green Mobility Fund was established on 29 November 2022 and
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completed filing on 8 December 2022. The fund mainly invested in fields of green transportation, clean
energy, energy saving and emission reduction, advanced manufacturing, frontier technology, big
consumption and big health.

2) Operation and progress of the fund: As at 31 December 2023, the total paid-in capital of the fund was
RMB 2.377 billion, investing in 24 projects, with a total contribution of RMB 1.196 billion.

5. Henan Shanggi Huirong Shangcheng No.1 Industrial Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Shangqi Shangcheng No.1 Fund”)

1) Establishment or expansion of the fund: Shangqi Shangcheng No.1 Fund was established on 9 March
2023 and completed the filing on 31 March 2023. In October 2023, to further enhance the Company's
expansion and flexibility in the auto industry layout, the Company's subsidiaries, SAIC Financial
Holding and SNAT, together with Guofu Navigation, Lianming Shares and Qigian Consulting, planned
to participate in the expansion of the fund. The total subscribed capital of the fund increased from RMB
3.3734 billion to RMB 4.2625 billion. SAIC Financial Holding increased its contribution from RMB
0.98 bhillion to RMB 1.33 hillion, holding 31.20% of equity. Henan Strategic Emerging Industry
Investment Fund contributed RMB 0.6 billion, holding 14.08% of equity; Jiangxi Modern Industry
Guidance Fund contributed RMB 0.3 billion, holding 7.04% of equity; Chongging Yufu Capital
contributed RMB 0.3 billion, holding 7.04% of equity; Guofu Navigation contributed RMB 0.3 billion,
holding 7.04% of equity; SNAT contributed RMB 0.2 billion, holding 4.69% of equity; Qingdao Huizhu
Talent Industry Investment Fund contributed RMB 0.2 billion, holding 4.69% of equity; Zhejiang
Qingzhan Industry contributed RMB 0.2 billion, holding 4.69% of equity; HASCO Motor contributed
RMB 0.17 billion, holding 3.99% of equity; Donghua Automotive contributed RMB 0.17 billion,
holding 3.99% of equity; China United Automotive contributed RMB 0.15 billion, holding 3.52% of
equity; Jiangxi State-owned Capital Operation Holding Group Co., Ltd. contributed RMB 0.15 billion,
holding 3.52% of equity; Shandong Land-sea-port City Construction Phase | contributed 70 million,
holding 1.64% of equity; Anhui Guoyuan Trust contributed RMB 49.9 million, holding 1.17% of equity;
Lianming Shares contributed RMB 30 million, holding 0.70% of equity; Qigian Consulting increased its
contribution from RMB 32.5 million to RMB 41.6 million, holding 0.98% of equity; Shangqi Capital
contributed RMB 1 million, holding 0.02% of equity. The fund focuses on auto electronics,
semiconductors, new energy, and industry chain extension and related fields, exploring sub-sectors such
as autonomous driving, intelligent cabins, low-carbon transportation, and semiconductors and
information security related to the industry chain.

2) Operation and progress of the fund: As at 31 December 2023, the total paid-in capital of the fund was
RMB 2.131 billion, investing in 23 projects, with a total contribution of RMB 1.496 billion.

6. Jiaxing Chuangqi Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Jiaxing Chuangqi
Fund”)

1) Establishment or expansion of the fund: Jiaxing Chuanggi Fund was established on 10 May 2023 and
completed the filing on 29 May 2023. The initial contribution size was RMB 5 billion, among which
SAIC Changzhou Innovation Development Fund contributed RMB 4.999 billion, holding 99.98% of
equity and Shangqgi Capital contributed RMB 1 million, holding 0.02% of equity. The fund mainly
invests in high-quality enterprises related to the innovation and development of the auto industry chain.
2) Operation and progress of the fund: As at 31 December 2023, the total paid-in capital of the fund was
RMB 1.97 billion, investing in 1 project, with a total contribution of RMB 1.97 billion.

7. Shanghai SAIC Xinju Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Shanghai SAIC
Xinju Fund”)

1) Establishment or expansion of the fund: Shanghai SAIC Xinju Fund was established on 7 July 2023.
The initial contribution size was RMB 6.012 billion, among which SAIC Motor contributed RMB 6
billion, holding 99.80% of equity, SAIC Financial Holding contributed RMB 10 million, holding
0.166% of equity, SAIC Hengxu contributed RMB 1 million, holding 0.017% of equity, and Shangqi
Capital contributed RMB 1 million, holding 0.017% of equity. The fund will invest in sub funds and
direct investment projects, focusing on key technology products related to chips in the upstream of the
semiconductor industry chain (such as equipment, materials, EDA and parts), design enterprises,
contract factories, and driven by auto intelligence, electrification, and connectivity, especially investment
opportunities related to auto chips.

2) Operation and progress of the fund: As at 31 December 2023, the total paid-in capital of the fund was
RMB 0.321 billion, investing in 1 project, with a total contribution of RMB 0.198 billion.
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Derivative investments
VApplicable ON/A

(1) Derivative investments for hedging purposes during the reporting period

VApplicable ON/A

Unit;: RMB 10 Thousand

Proportion
. of carrying
Profitor | Accumulated
Opening | loss from | changesin Amount _Amount_ Ending amount to
S Initial balance of | changes fair value purchased | disposed in balance of the
Derivative investment type . . LS - in the the . Company's
investment | carrying in fair which are reporting reporting carrying net assets at
amount vazlgggm mcelugietd in period period amount the end of
quity the reporting
period (%)
Forward foreign exchange settlement and sales 416.13
Total 416.13

Explanation on the accounting policies and specific
accounting principles for hedging business during
the reporting period, as well as whether there were
significant changes compared to the previous
reporting period

Not applicable

Explanation on actual profit or loss during the
reporting period

In order to effectively avoid and prevent foreign exchange risk and reduce the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuations on the Company's operations, the Company enters into forward foreign exchange settlement and
sales business. During the reporting period, the Company realized a delivery income of RMB 4.1613 million
from the forward foreign exchange settlement and sales.

Explanation on hedging effectiveness

The Company's foreign exchange forward hedging business is based on actual foreign exchange receipts and
payments and is used to hedge costs and protect against the foreign exchange fluctuation risk. The gains or
losses on the foreign exchange forward contracts effectively hedged the changes in the value of the hedged
exposure caused by exchange rate fluctuations and the overall hedging effectiveness met expectations.

Source of funds for derivative investments

Own funds

Explanation on risk analysis and control measures
for derivative holdings during the reporting period
(including but not limited to market risk, liquidity
risk, credit risk, operational risk and legal risk)

1. Market risk: The Company's foreign exchange forward trading products are all simple foreign exchange
derivatives closely related to the basic business, and are consistent with the basic business in terms of variety,
size, direction and maturity. They seek only to hedge risk exposure and do not engage in any form or
substance of speculative trading. The Company adheres to the principle of prudence and steadiness in foreign
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exchange risk management. 2. Liquidity risk: In actual operations, the deterioration of sales may lead to an
inability to collect payments on a timely basis, resulting in the liquidity risk of a lack of funds for derivative
transactions. The hedging limit of most of the domestic and overseas entities in which the Company invests is
set within a certain proportion of the corresponding risk exposure. Therefore, if some accounts receivable
cannot be collected on time, there will be no liquidity risk for hedging transactions. In addition, enterprises
participating in domestic and foreign derivative transactions will also improve the management of receivables
and actively collect accounts receivable to avoid or reduce the overdue. If accounts receivable become
overdue, the corresponding derivative transactions are extended in a timely manner. 3. Credit risk: The
Company only engages in foreign exchange forward business with qualified domestic and foreign financial
institutions that have stable operations and good credit ratings, SAIC SFC and SAIC HK International
Finance Ltd. 4. Operational, legal, and other risks: The Company has formulated the related internal control
systems such as the Management of Financial Derivatives in accordance with relevant laws, regulations and
related standard documents, which standardize the business operation and approval process of financial
derivatives. The relevant internal control systems or derivative business of each enterprise have been
approved by the relevant authorities.

Changes in the market prices or fair values of
derivatives invested in during the reporting period,
and the analysis of the fair value of derivatives Not applicable
should disclose the specific methodologies used and
the assumptions and parameters

Lawsuits (if applicable)

Announcement disclosure date of the Board for

approval of derivative investments (if any) 29 April 2023

(2) Derivative investments for speculative purposes during the reporting period
CApplicable VN/A

Other explanations

The Proposal on Derivative Trading Business in 2023, which was reviewed and approved at the 13th meeting of the 8th Board of Directors of the Company,
stipulated that the scope of derivative transactions included foreign exchange forwards, the limit of derivative transactions was USD 9.4 billion or other equivalent
foreign currencies, and the term of derivative transactions matched with the term of the transactions of underlying assets, generally not exceeding 12 months.

The enterprises conducted business in accordance with the approved limit. As at 31 December 2023, there were no cases in which the limit was exceeded. The
balance of the limit at the end of December 2023 was USD 0.224 billion or other equivalent foreign currencies. Foreign exchange forward business was conducted,
the term of which matched with the term of the transactions of underlying assets or the term of the exposure being hedged and was not exceeding 12 months.
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4.  Specific progress of significant asset reconstructing and integration during the reporting
period
CApplicable VN/A

(V1) Disposals of significant assets and equity
CApplicable VN/A

(V1)  Analysis on major holding companies and invested companies
VApplicable ON/A
Unit: RMB 10 Thousand

Net assets Net profit
. . attributable to attributable
Name (.Jf Natl_Jre of Main pro_ducts Reg|gtered Total assets the parent Total revenue to the parent
companies business or services capital
company of company of
the Company the Company
Manufacturing
SAIC Volkswagen |Manufacturing | and sales of 1,150,000 11,103,138.93 2,041,548.08 14,027,533.85 313,212.40
vehicles
Manufacturing USsD
SAIC GM Manufacturing | and sales of 108.300 8,747,793.68 1,855,133.78 14,528,575.58 254,284.51
vehicles '
Manufacturing
HASCO Manufacturing | and sales of auto 315,272 17,609,652.71 5,776,758.55 16,859,405.13 721,417.58
parts
. Financial
SAIC SFC Finance services 1,538,000 30,113,674.31 5,412,904.67 1,804,625.66 570,152.95
Manufacturing
SGMW Manufacturing | and sales of 166,808 6,029,443.96 996,100.09 7,600,925.72 93,057.13
vehicles

(VI) Structured entities controlled by the Company

VApplicable ON/A

As at 31 December 2023, the Company directly consolidated 7 structured entities and included those
structured entities over which it had control in its consolidated financial statements, after taking into
account its investment decision rights, its exposure to variable returns and the use of its investment
decision rights to affect variable returns. Refer to the notes in this report for the relevant information.

VI Discussion and analysis on future development of the Company

(1) Industry structure and development trend

VApplicable ON/A

In terms of industry structure, the new round of technological revolution is accelerating the
transformation of the global auto industry. In the competition of the new area of electric intelligent
connectivity, traditional OEM, ICT cross-border enterprises and new forces in auto manufacturing
have their own advantages. The key lies in accurately identifying user needs and continuously
innovating product concepts, accelerating technological iteration, and enhancing the user experience
through the effective application of new competitive aspects such as software, algorithms, data, and
ecology. At the same time, in the context of increasingly fierce industry competition, improving cost
competitiveness to achieve sales growth and stable cash flows will become an important prerequisite
and fundamental guarantee for the sustainable development of enterprises.

In terms of industry trends, the long-term trend of electrification and intelligence has been established
in terms of market structure. However, the pace of development will follow the law of "wave- and
spiral-like progress”. The greater popularization of intelligent connectivity EVs requires continuous
improvement of product and consumption environment. From the perspective of competition, the
"internal competition" of the industry will continue, and in the process of market clearing, the sales
share will be more concentrated among the leading enterprises. From the perspective of industrial
upgrading, with the continuous breakthroughs in key core technologies such as 800V high voltage,
semi-solid/solid batteries, large computing power chips, vehicle operating systems, and Al Foundation
Models, etc. on the new area of intelligent connected EVs, Chinese brands will rise faster in the global
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market. The overseas market will not only become an important guarantee for Chinese auto
enterprises to increase sales and profitability, but also a broader stage for them to demonstrate
international competitiveness, enhance brand influence and achieve high-quality development.

In 2024, China's macroeconomic condition will continue to improve, which will facilitate the stable
growth of the auto industry. With the continued implementation of national policies to promote
consumption and stabilize growth, as well as customers who purchased cars from 2015 to 2017 begin
to replace cars, the market's vitality and consumption potential will be further stimulated. It is
expected that the domestic auto market will sell about 26.8 million vehicles (excluding exports) in
2024, with a year-on-year growth of about 3%, and maintain a stable and positive development trend.
Of which, sales of passenger vehicles are expected to be about 23 million, up 2.3% year-on-year; sales
of commercial vehicles are expected to be about 3.8 million, up 8.6% year-on-year; and domestic
sales of new energy vehicles are expected to be about 10.8 million, up 30% year-on-year. In 2024,
China's auto exports will reach a new level, and is expected to reach 5.5 million vehicles, an increase
of about 10% year-on-year.

(1) The Company'’s development strategy

VApplicable ON/A

The Company will firmly grasp the overall direction of market development, technological progress
and industry transformation. The Company will focus on the strategic goals set in the "14th Five-Years
Plan", with the main focus on promoting the implementation of “Three-year Action Plan for the
Development of NEVs” accurately identifying changes, scientifically responding to and actively
seeking changes, accelerating innovation and transformation in the products, marketing and
organization.

On the product side, the Company will focus on user experience and demand scenarios, innovate
product concept and precisely define products. The Company will fully leverage industry-leading
technology advantages such as DMH super hybrid, “central computing + regional control," "Galaxy"
full stack 3.0 intelligent vehicle solution, and VMC technology to create a more competitive
intelligent driving and cabin experience. The Company achieves rapid product iteration and upgrades
by improving the ability of ""software-defined vehicles".

On the marketing side, under the background of runoff economy, the Company will innovate
communication methods, output high-quality communication content, and accelerate the formation of
closed-loop data traffic management. The Company will use new media to better target users, attract
and gather attention, and improve sales convertion efficiency.

On the organization side, the Company will focus closely on the new trend of market competition,
integrate product and marketing, link product development with market performance, establish
appropriate incentive and constraint mechanisms, and achieve closed-loop management of the entire
product life cycle. At the same time, the Company will continue to reduce its internal hierarchy, speed
up its response to the market, provide timely user feedback to product development department, and
improve the user experience.

(111) Business plan

VApplicable ON/A

In 2024, the Company will adhere to the work keynote of "seeking for improvement on a steady basis
and prioritizing progress” and balance "quality and quantity, stability and progress, and building and
discarding". The Company will focus on the “Three-year Action Plan for the Development of NEVs”,
with greater efforts to expand the market, transform marketing, improve quality and efficiency to
achieve effective performance improvement and reasonable sales volume growth. At the same time,
the Company will focus on "building world-class demonstration enterprises” and "deepening and
upgrading the reform of state-owned enterprises”, with greater efforts to promote reform and
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innovation, implement key tasks such as organizational reform, process optimization and project

breakthroughs, continuously enhance core competitiveness among new areas, and better stimulate the

vitality of the Company. The Company will strive to achieve annual sales of 5.45 million vehicles, a

total revenue of more than RMB 790 billion, and the cost of sales of RMB 700 billion around.

1. The vehicle segment will focus on “Three-year Action Plan for the Development of NEVs”. The
segment will focus on real user experience, enhance the comprehensive competitiveness of
products, actively promote marketing system reform, seize market structural opportunities, and
ensure the achievement of annual business targets.

2. The auto parts segment will focus on the development trend of electric intelligent connectivity,
accelerate the transformation and upgrading of business and products, and enhance modular and
systematic capabilities through resource integration, seizing the commanding heights of the
industrial chain and supply chains.

3. The mobility and services segment will continue to leverage its resource synergy advantages, fully
ensure the smooth operation of logistics, and expand new businesses related to user travel, auto
services, and other scenarios, further improving service experience and business quality.

4. The finance sector will further integrate resources and innovate services, fully support domestic
vehicle sales and overseas market development, and, in combination with market and policy
changes, optimize business layout, strengthen financial empowerment and promote value
realization.

5. The overseas business segment will take the 100th anniversary of the birth of the MG brand as an
opportunity to launch new products, promote the export of IM Motors' products, and further
develop the system coordination of “production, sales and transportation”. The segment will focus
on cultivating key regional markets, accelerate the development of new overseas markets, and
continuously improve its contribution level.

The innovative technology segment will coordinate and gather innovative technology resources,
focus on “sofware-defned vehicles”, promote the joint development of “algorithms + sofware
+ chips”, and accelerate the applicaton of new technologies such as Al Foundaton Models in
vehicles. The segment will deepen the forward-looking technology layout and promote the
industrial applicaton of next-generaton power batery technology.

(1V) Potential risks

VApplicable ON/A

(1) Price competition in the domestic industry remains fierce, which may cause market fluctuations
and affect the pace of recovery in vehicle demand. (2) The implementation of trade protection
measures in some overseas markets may adversely affect China's vehicle exports.

(V) Others
CApplicable VN/A

VIl Explanation on conditions and reasons for undisclosed matters in accordance with the
standards due to non-application of accounting standards or special reasons such as
national secrets and trade secrets

OApplicable VN/A
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Section IV  Corporate Governance

I.  Explanation on corporate governance
VApplicable ON/A

In accordance with laws and regulations including the Company Law, the Securities Law, the Code of
Corporate Governance for Listed Companies, the Measures for the Administration of Independent
Directors of Listed Companies, the Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on Shanghai Stock
Exchange, the Guidelines of the Shanghai Stock Exchange for Self-regulation of Listed Companies
No.1 - Standardized Operation, the Articles of Association and relevant regulations and requirements
of CSRC and SSE, the Company continuously improved its governance level and quality as a listed
company. During the reporting period, the Company maintained stable operations, accelerated
innovative transformation, and effectively prevented and controlled risks in the face of changes in the
external environment, such as intensifying price competition and market structure restructuring. At the
same time, the Company adhered to regulated operations, strictly fulfilled the obligation of
information disclosure, actively carried out investors' relationship management, and seriously fulfilled
social responsibilities to promote the sustainable and high-quality development of the Company.

(1) Shareholders and general meeting of shareholders

During the reporting period, the Company strictly followed the relevant provisions of the Code of
Corporate Governance for Listed Companies, Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on Shanghai
Stock Exchange, Articles of Association and Rules of Procedure for General Meeting of Shareholders
to convene a general meeting of shareholders, which combined on-site voting with online voting. At
the same time, the Company engaged an attorney to attend the general meeting of shareholders to
witness and verify meeting procedures, and the identification of the attendants, proposal to be
deliberated, and voting-related matters to ensure the validity of the general meeting of shareholders
and the equal status and rights of all shareholders to exercise their rights. The Company held one
general meeting of shareholders in 2023, and please refer to "review of general meeting of
shareholders" for further details.

(11) Directors and Board

There are 8 directors of the Company, including 2 external directors (no other duty role in the
Company except for director and is not an independent director) and 3 independent directors. The
Strategic and ESG sustainable Development Committee, Audit Committee, and Nomination,
Remuneration & Appraisal Committee are established under the Board of the Company. For the
Strategic and ESG sustainable Development Committee, external directors and independent directors
account for three fifths. The Audit Committee, and Nomination, Remuneration & Appraisal
Committee members are all external directors or independent directors, with the independent director
acting as chairman of the committee. During the reporting period, the Board of Directors held 6 board
meetings, 1 meeting of the Strategic and ESG sustainable Development Committee, 5 meetings of the
Audit Committee and 4 meetings of the Nomination, Remuneration & Appraisal Committee. Please
refer to "Particulars about board meetings convened during the reporting period" and "Particulars
about special committees under the Board of Directors" for details. All the directors performed their
obligations and duties in a faithful, diligent and prudent manner. They devoted continuous attention to
the operation and management of the Company and actively participated in on-site interviews and
investigations. They carefully deliberated on the proposals, carried out thorough discussions and
exchanges and made scientific decisions at all meetings. No circumstances of violating laws and
regulations or damaging the interests of the Company or shareholders were found.
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(11 Supervisors and Board of Supervisors

The Company's Board of Supervisors and supervisors have earnestly performed the supervisory and
examination responsibilities endowed by the general meeting of shareholders in a spirit of being
highly responsible for all the shareholders according to the provisions of the Articles of Association
and Rules of Procedure for the Board of Supervisors and implemented effective supervision on the
Company's standard operation, financial condition, internal control construction and duty performing
of directors and senior management. During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors held 6
meetings in total, during which they deliberated and supervised important matters such as regular
reports, construction of internal control, related party transactions, repurchase of the Company's
shares, provision for impairment of assets, cancellation of repurchased shares and changes in
accounting policies, and no situations such as violation of laws or regulations or damage to the
interests of shareholders were identified.

(V) Corporate governance system

During the reporting period, considering the changes in regulatory requirements and actual demands,
the Company continually optimized the systems, revised six basic management policies including the
Articles of Association, the Rules of Procedure for General Meeting of Shareholders, the Rules of
Procedure for the Board of Directors, the Rules of Procedure for the Board of Supervisors, the
Management Policy for the Raised Funds, and the Related Party Transaction Management Policy,
improved business processes, and effectively enhanced internal control. In the aspects of proposal
decision, information disclosure, dividends distribution, external investment, related party
transactions, external guarantee, financial support, repurchase of the Company's shares, provision for
impairment of assets, and cancellation of repurchased shares, the Company strictly implemented
relevant policies and standardized work processes. In strict compliance with policies such as the
Investors Relationship Management System and the Registration Management System for Insiders, the
Company ensured the compliance and efficiency of investor relationship management and registration
of insiders.

(V) Performance evaluation, incentive and restraining mechanism

The Company has selected managerial personnel according to the principles of ability and integrity,
equality and fairness and implemented a tenure system. In the meantime, the Company has established
a performance evaluation and remuneration system that links the remuneration of management with
the Company's operating performance and individual performance. In order to implement the
requirements of the CPC Central Committee, the State Council and Shanghai Municipal Party
Committee and Municipal Government on further strengthening the Party building of state-owned
enterprises, deepening the reform of state-owned capital and state-owned enterprises, improving the
modern enterprise system and corporate governance structure with Chinese characteristics, and
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(V1) Information disclosure and transparency

During the reporting period, the Company took initiative to work on investors' relationships in
accordance with the requirements as outlined in the Investors Relationship Management System and
the Information Disclosure Management System. In 2023, the Company received visits by over 2,300
persons from more than 150 investment agents, and over 650 enquiry calls. In addition, the Company
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Harbour Haijia Vehicle Dock Co., Ltd., the
Proposal on the Repurchase Guarantee
Provided by SAIC Maxus for Its Vehicle Sales
Business, the Proposal on the Repurchase
Guarantee Provided by Nanjing lveco for Its
Vehicle Sales Business, the Proposal on the
Repurchase Guarantee Provided by SAIC
Hongyan for Its Vehicle Sales Business, the
Proposal on Providing Entrusted Loans for KS
HUAYU Alu Tech GmbH by HUAYU
Automotive (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., the
Proposal on the Amount of External Donation
for 2023, the Proposal on the Revision of the
Articles of Association, the Proposal on the
Revision of the Rules of Procedure for General
Meeting of Shareholders, the Proposal on the
Revision of the Rules of Procedure for the
Board of Directors, the Proposal on the
Revision of the Rules of Procedure for the
Board of Supervisors, the Proposal on the
Revision of the Management Policy for the
Raised Funds, the Proposal on the Revision of
the Related Party Transaction Management
Policy, and the Proposal on the Addition of
Directors of the Company.

Extraordinary general meetings requested by preferred shareholders with restored voting rights

OApplicable VN/A

Explanation on general meeting of shareholders
CApplicable VN/A
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior management
(I) Changes in shareholding of current and resigned directors, supervisors and senior management during the reporting period and their remuneration
VApplicable ON/A

Unit: Shares
Total remuneration Whether to
_ _ Shares held at Shares held _Changes Reason before tax received receive_
. Starting Ending date L at 31 in number from the Company remuneration
Name Position Gender | Age d the beginning for the . .
ate of term of term of the year December of shares change during the reporting from related
2023 held period (RMB 10 parties of the
Thousand) Company
Chen Hong gg;&ma” of the | Male 62 | 2021630 | 2024-6-29 8,380 8,380 0 142.73 No
Wang Xiao Qiu | Director, President Male 59 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 439.40 No
Wang Jian Director Male 69 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 0 No
Huang Jian Director Male 54 2023-6-15 2024-6-29 0 No
Zeng Sai Xing Independent director | Male 57 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 10.00 No
Chen Nai Wei Independent director | Male 66 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 10.00 No
Sun Zheng Independent director | Male 66 2022-5-20 2024-6-29 10.00 No
Employee
Hua En De representative Male 47 2023-12-12 2024-6-29 13.95 No
director
Yi Lian Supervisor Male 57 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 0 No
Xia Ming Tao Supervisor Male 46 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 0 Yes
Employee
Jiang Bao Xin representative Male 54 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 184.53 No
supervisor
. Employee
fgzgg X120 | representative Male 47 | 202347 | 2024629 102.82 No
supervisor
Zhou Lang Hui Vice president Male 52 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 396.65 No
Lan Qing Song Vice president Male 58 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 367.00 No
Wei Yong Vice  president, | yiaie | 51 | 2021-630 | 2024-6-29 374.46 No
acting CFO
zu si Jie vice _president, | oy 55 | 2021-6-30 | 2024-6-29 373.06 No
Chief engineer
;223 X120 | \/ice president Male | 53 | 2021-6:-30 | 2024-6-29 319.28 No
Jia Jian Xu Vice president Male 45 2023-12-22 2024-6-29 0 No
Jiang Jun Vice president Male 53 2023-12-22 2024-6-29 0 No
Wu Bing Vice president Male 47 2023-12-22 2024-6-29 0 No
Zhou Qi General counsel Male 45 2023-8-29 2024-6-29 38.87 No
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Secretary of the

Chen Xun Board Male 43 2021-6-30 2024-6-29 145.41 No
Former  employee

Zhong Li Xin representative Male 60 2021-6-30 2023-11-23 116.44 No
director
Former Chairman of

Shen Xiao Su Board of | Male 63 2021-6-30 2023-10-8 0 No
Supervisors
Former  employee

Xu Wen Hui representative Female 54 2021-6-30 2023-4-7 800 800 0 78.93 No
supervisor

Chen De Mei Former VICE | Male 61 | 2021-6-30 | 2023-4-27 27351 No
president

Total / / / / / 9,180 9,180 0 / 3,397.04 /

Note: During the reporting period, in accordance with relevant regulations and the tenure assessment results for 2018-2020 and performance assessment result for
2022, the remuneration of the Company's senior management as disclosed included a part of tenure incentives for 2018-2020, the annual performance salary for
2022 and medium- and long-term incentives for 2022 that had been honored.

Name Major working experience

Chen Hong He is currently the chairman of the Board and secretary of the Party Committee of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

Wang Xiao | He served as vice president of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited and general manager and Head of Technical Center of the Passenger Vehicle

Qiu Branch. He is currently the director, president, and deputy secretary of the Party Committee of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

Wang Jian He served as chairman of the Board, deputy secretary and secretary of the Party Committee of Shenergy Group Company Limited, and vice
chairman of the Board of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. He is currently the director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.
He served as director of the capital division under the Finance Department of China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company, vice president and
general manager of the Finance Department of COSCO Logistics (America) Co., Ltd. (formerly "COSCO US Inland Transportation Co., Ltd."),

Huang Jian CFO and general manager of the Finance Department of COSCO (America) Co., Ltd., deputy general manager of the Finance Department of
China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company, and deputy general manager (administration) of the Capital Operation Department of China COSCO
Shipping Corporation Limited. He is currently the director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited and general manager of the Capital Operation
Department of China COSCO Shipping Corporation Limited.

Zeng Sai He served as head of the _Department c_)f Mz_inagem(_ant Science and_ th_e D(_epartment of Innovation and Stra‘gegy of Anta_i College of Econom_ics &

Xing Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He is currently a distinguished professor and doctoral advisor of Antai College of Economics &
Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong University, and independent director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.
He served as head of the Law Department of Shanghai Jiao Tong University, senior partner of AllBright Law Offices in Shanghai, professor of

Chen Nai | Fudan University Law School, and executive dean of Advanced Institute of Lawyers. He is currently president of China (Shanghai) Pilot Free

Wei Trade Zone Intellectual Property Association, executive vice president of China Law Association on Science & Technology, and independent
director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

Sun Zheng He served as vice president of Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, director of the Academic Committee of the University, dean of the
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Business School, and a member of the Accounting Standards Committee of the Ministry of Finance. He is currently a senior professor at
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, and independent director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

He served as vice secretary (administration) of the Party Committee, secretary of Committee for Discipline Inspection, and chairman of labor
union of Shanghai Volkswagen Powertrain Co., Ltd., secretary of the Party Committee, secretary of Committee for Discipline Inspection, and
chairman of labor union of HASCO KSPG Nonferrous Components (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., vice secretary of the Party Committee, secretary of

Hua En De Committee for Discipline Inspection, and chairman of labor union of SAIC Volkswagen Automotive Co., Ltd., and vice chairman of labor union
of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. He is currently the employee representative director, vice chairman (administration) of the labor union, head
of the Board Office of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited, and Board Secretary of Shanghai Automotive Industry (Group) Co., Ltd.

Yi Lian He served as deputy director general of the Economic Responsibility Audit Division (Internal Audit Guidance Office) of the Shanghai Municipal
Audit Bureau. He is currently the supervisor of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

He served as senior director of budget control, senior director of budget control, and senior director of accounting in the Finance Department of

Xia Ming | SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. He is currently the supervisor of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited, employee representative supervisor and

Tao general manager of the Finance Department of Shanghai Automotive Industry (Group) Co., Ltd., and CFO of Shanghai Rui Chuang Automobile
Sales Co,, Ltd.

Jiang  Bao | He is currently employee representative supervisor, head of the audit office, and general manager of the Risk Management Department of SAIC

Xin Motor Corporation Limited.

He served as vice secretary of the Committee for Discipline Inspection, director of the discipline inspection supervision office, and head of the

Zhang Xiao | office of the leading group for Party Committee inspection of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. He is currently supervisor of Shanghai

Long Automotive Industry (Group) Co., Ltd., and employee representative supervisor and minister of the Organization Cadre Department of SAIC
Motor Corporation Limited.

E'TJ?U Lang He is currently vice president and vice secretary of the Party Committee of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

Is‘g?]g Qing He is currently vice president of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited and general manager of the Department of Commercial Vehicle.

He served as Board Secretary, general manager of the Securities Affairs Department, securities affairs representative, and general manager of the

Wei Yong Finance Business Department of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. He is currently vice president and acting CFO of SAIC Motor Corporation
Limited, and general manager of SAIC HK Investment Co., Ltd.

Zu'Si Jie He served as deputy general engineer of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. He is currently vice president and general engineer of SAIC Motor
Corporation Limited, president of SRIH, and Head of Technical Center.

Yang  Xiao He serv_ed as general manager of the International Bus_iness Depgrtment of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited, general manager of SA_IC

Dong International Trade Co., Ltd., general manager of Shanghai Automobile Import & Export Company, general manager of SAIC Motor Corporation
Limited Passenger Vehicle Branch, and Head of Technical Center. He is currently vice president of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

He served as deputy general manager (administration) of SAIC Luxembourg Co., Ltd., deputy general manager (administration) of SAIC

Jia Jian Xu (Europe) Co., Ltd., deputy general manager (administration) of Shanghai Automotive Industry (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., deputy general manager

(administration) and general manager of Yanfeng Automotive Trim Systems Co., Ltd., and general manager of Yanfeng Automotive Trim

441 244




SAIC MOTOR ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Systems Co., Ltd. and general manager of Shanghai SIIC Transportation Electric Co., Ltd. He is currently vice president of SAIC Motor
Corporation Limited and general manager and vice secretary of the Party Committee of SAIC Volkswagen Automotive Co., Ltd.

Jiang Jun

He served as vice secretary of the Party Committee and secretary of the Committee for Discipline Inspection of SAIC General Motors Co., Ltd.,
and head of the Execution Group under the L Project Team of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. He is currently vice president of SAIC Motor
Corporation Limited and CEO of IM Motors Co., Ltd.

Wu Bing

He served as general manager and Party branch secretary of SAIC Insurance Sales Co., Ltd., team leader of the SAIC online car-hailing project,
general manager and general Party branch secretary of Shanghai SAIC Mobility Technology and Service Co., Ltd., general manager of SAIC
Motor Corporation Limited Passenger Vehicle Branch, and CEO of Rising Auto Technology Co., Ltd. He is currently vice president of SAIC
Motor Corporation Limited and general manager of the Department of Mobility and Services.

Zhou Qi

He served as deputy general manager of the Department of Cooperation and Legal Affairs of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. He is currently
the general counsel and general manager of the Department of Cooperation and Legal Affairs of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

Chen Xun

He served as assistant to the director and deputy director of the president office of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. He is currently secretary of
the Board of Directors, and deputy general manager (administration) of the Securities Affairs Department of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited.

Other remarks

O Applicable v N/A
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(1) Information of appointed and resigned directors, supervisors and senior management during
the reporting period

1. Positions held in shareholder entity
VApplicable CIN/A

Starting Ending
Name Name of shareholder entity Position held date of date of
term term
Shanghai Automotive Industry .
Chen Hong (Group) Co., Ltd. Chairman of the Board 2021-3-23 | 2024-3-22
Zhou Lang Hui Shanghai Automotive Industry Chalrm_an of Board of 2021-3-23 | 2024-3-22
(Group) Co., Ltd. Supervisors
Chen De Mei Shanghai Automotive Industry Former director 2021-3-23 | 2023-4-24
(Group) Co., Ltd.
Zhang  Xiao | Shanghai Automotive Industry . = .
Long (Group) Co., Ltd. Supervisor 2022-7-22 | 2024-3-22
HuaEnDe | Shanghai Automotive INAUStry | goooinry of the Board | 2022-11-23 | 2024-3-22
(Group) Co., Ltd.
Employee representative
. Shanghai Automotive Industry | supervisor, general 2 2
Xia Ming Tao (Group) Co., Ltd. manager of the Finance 2021-3-23 | 2024-3-22
Department
2. Positions held in other entities
VApplicable ON/A
Starting Ending
Name Name of other entities Position held date of date of
term term
Chen Hong HASCO Chairman of the Board 2021-6-30 | 2024-6-29
\(’g\’ii”g X0 | asco Director 2021-6-30 | 2024-6-29
Zhou Lang Hui | HASCO chairman of Board of | 451 630 | 2024-6-29
Supervisors
Zhong Li Xin | HASCO Former employee | »51 630 | 2023-11-23
representative director
HuaEnDe | HASCO Employee 2023-12-12 | 2024-6-29
representative director
Shanghai New Power Chairman of Board of
Zhou Lang Hui | Automotive Technology . 2021-12-6 | 2024-12-6
o Supervisors
Company Limited
Shanghai New Power
Lan Qing Song | Automotive Technology | Chairman of the Board 2021-12-6 | 2024-12-6
Company Limited
Shanghai New Power
Jiang Bao Xin | Automotive Technology | Supervisor 2021-12-6 | 2024-12-6

Company Limited
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(111) Remuneration of directors,
VApplicable ON/A

supervisors and senior management

Decision-making process for

The allowance of independent directors shall be decided by the Board
and subject to the approval of the general meeting of shareholders.
Each independent director may receive an allowance of RMB 100,000

remuneration  of  directors, | (before tax) and the necessary and reasonable costs arising from

supervisors and senior | performing the duties shall be borne by the Company. The Company's

management non-independent directors shall not receive remuneration for the
position of directors. The Company's supervisors shall not receive
remuneration for the position of supervisor.

Whether  directors avoid

presence during discussions on
his/her remuneration by the
Board of Directors

Yes

Specific opinions of the
Remuneration &  Appraisal
Committee or special meetings
of independent directors on the

In 2023, at the 1st meeting of the Nomination, Remuneration &
Appraisal Committee under the Board, the Company's remuneration
of directors, supervisors and senior management for 2022 was agreed,
and deemed compliant with relevant regulations.

According to the Company's medium- and long-term strategic
planning, annual key work arrangements, and the division of
responsibilities of senior management, the performance assessment
targets are clarified and assessments are conducted. Senior
management' performance pay is related to the corporate performance
and the results of performance assessment.

According to the Proposal on the Implementation Plan of the
Company's Further Deepening of the Reform of the Remuneration
System for Professional Managers reviewed and approved at the 8th
meeting of the 8th Board of Directors, and the Proposal on 2022
Annual Performance Assessment for the Company's Professional
Manager and the Proposal on the Implementation Plan of the
Company's Incremental Performance Incentive Plan for 2022
reviewed and approved at the 17th meeting of the 8th Board of
Directors, the Company's professional managers cashed 2022
performance annual pay and 2022 medium- and long-term incentive
during the reporting period. According to 2018-2020 tenure
assessment results, the Company's senior management cashed part of
2018-2020 incentives within their tenure during the reporting period.
The specific amounts have been included in the total annual
remuneration payable.

remuneration of  directors,
supervisors and senior
management

Determination basis for
remuneration of  directors,
supervisors and senior
management

Actual payment for
remuneration of  directors,
supervisors and senior
management

Total remuneration of all
directors,  supervisors  and

senior management received by
the end of the reporting period

RMB 33.9704 million

(1V) Alteration of directors, supervisors and senior management

VApplicable ON/A

Name Position held Alteration Reasons for changes
Huang Jian | Director Election By-election at the general meeting of
shareholders
Hua En De E_mployee representative Election By-election at the 9th joint meeting of the 3rd
director congress of workers and staff of the Company
Zhang Employee representative | Election By-election at the 8th joint meeting of the 3rd
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Xiao Long | supervisor congress of workers and staff of the Company

Jia Jian Xu | Vice president Appointment | Appointment by the Board of Directors

Jiang Jun Vice president Appointment | Appointment by the Board of Directors

Wu Bing Vice president Appointment | Appointment by the Board of Directors

Zhou Qi General counsel Appointment | Appointment by the Board of Directors

Zhong Li | Former employee N Resignation as employee representative

. . . Resignation . .
Xin representative director director due to retirement by age
Shen Xiao | Former Chairman  of o Re3|gnz_it|on as Chalrm_an of the Bo_ard of
. Resignation | Supervisors and supervisor due to retirement

Su Board of Supervisors by age

Xu  Wen | Former employee Resianati Resignation as employee representative
. . . esignation .

Hui representative supervisor supervisor due to work changes

Chen De . . Lo Resignation as vice president due to retirement

Mei Former vice president Resignation by age

(V) Penalty by regulators in recent three years
CApplicable VN/A

(V1) Others

CApplicable VN/A

V. Particulars about board meetings convened during the reporting period

Sequence of
the Meeting

13th meeting
of the 8th
Board of
Directors

Convening
date

Resolutions

Deliberate and approve the Work Report of the Board of Directors for
2022, the Work Report of the President for 2022, the Debriefing of the
Independent Directors for 2022, the Proposal on the Report of the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors on the Performance of
Duties for 2022, the Proposal on Changes in Accounting Policies, the

27 April 2023
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Repurchase Guarantee Provided by Nanjing Iveco for Its Vehicle Sales
Business, the Proposal on the Repurchase Guarantee Provided by SAIC
Hongyan for Its Vehicle Sales Business, the Proposal on Providing
Entrusted Loans to Nanjing Jiangsheng Automobile Terminal Co., Ltd.
by SAIC Anji Logistics Co.,Ltd, the Proposal on Providing Entrusted
Loans for KS HUAYU AluTech GmbH by HUAYU Automotive (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd., the Proposal on Foreign Exchange Derivative Trading
Business in 2023, the Proposal on the Amount of External Donation for
2023, the Report for 2023Q1, the Proposal on the Revision of the
Articles of Association, the Proposal on the Revision of the Rules of
Procedure for General Meeting of Shareholders, the Proposal on the
Revision of the Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors, the
Proposal on the Revision of the Management Policy for the Raised
Funds, the Proposal on the Revision of the Related Party Transaction
Management Policy, the Proposal on the Addition of Directors of the
Company, the Proposal on Accepting the Resignation of Mr. Chen De
Mei as Vice President of the Company, and the Proposal on Convening
the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company in 2022

14th meeting

Deliberate and approve the Proposal on the Change of SAIC Motor
Corporation Limited Zhengzhou Engine Branch from a Branch into a

%foar?e Sg:c 25 May 2023 | New Subsidiary, and the Proposal on the Additional Investment in
Di QingTao (Kunshan) Energy Development Co., Ltd. and Related Party
Irectors .
Transactions
15th meeting
of the 8th 12 June 2023 Deliberate and approve the Proposal on the Repurchase of Shares by
Board of Means of Concentrated Bidding
Directors
Deliberate and approve the 2023 Half Year Interim Report and
16th meeting Summar_y, the Proposal on the 2023 Half Year Interim Internal _Control
of the 8th|29  August Evaluation Report, the Proposal on the Investment in and
B Establishment of SAIC QingTao New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., the
oard of | 2023 . 4 Lo
Directors Proposal on the Adjustment of the.Company s Organizational Structure,
and the Proposal on the Appointment of General Counsel of the
Company
Deliberate and approve the Report for 2023Q3, the Proposal on the
Cancellation of Repurchased Shares, Reduction of Registered Capital
17th meeting and Corresponding Revision of the Articles of Association, the
of the 8th |26 October | Proposal on the Implementation Plan of the Reform of the Salary
Board of | 2023 Determination Mechanism of SAIC Motor (2023-2026), the Proposal
Directors on 2022 Annual Performance Assessment for the Company's

Professional Manager, and the Proposal on the Implementation Plan of
the Company's Incremental Performance Incentive Plan for 2022

18th meeting

of the 8th
Board of
Directors

22 December
2023

Deliberate and approve the Proposal on the Appointment of Vice
President of the Company, and the Proposal on the Renaming of the
International Business Department as the International Business
Division and the Adjustment of the Company's Organizational Structure
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VI. Duty performance of directors
(1) Directors' attendance of board meetings and general meeting of shareholders

Attendance
Attendance of board meetings of ge_neral
meeting of
shareholders
Director Irjldependent
director (yes
Name
or no)
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Audit Committee

Sun Zheng, Wang Jian, and Zeng Sai Xing

Nomination, Remuneration & Appraisal Committee

Chen Nai Wei, Wang Jian, and Sun Zheng

(2) Strategic and ESG sustainable Development Committee convened 1 meeting during the
reporting period

Convening Important comments and .
date Content recommendations Other particulars
It is recommended that the Company
adhere to high-quality development
Deliberate and approve the "1+5" and focus the development of self-
. owned brands on the new tracks of
. . Progressive Development Plan of | . - - .

26 April | 1st meeting the Company (2023-2027), and intelligent electric vehicles. Also, the
2023 in 2023 pany i Company should continue to expand

approve to submit it to the Board
of Directors for deliberation

overseas business, and further increase
the proportion of sales of self-owned
brands and, sales of new energy
vehicles and sales in overseas markets

(3) Audit Committee convened 5 meetings during the reporting period

Cor:jvenmg Content Important comments and Other particulars

ate recommendations
Deliberate and approve the | The plan to replace the accounting
Proposal on Changes in | firm of the Company is approved and
Accounting Policies, the Proposal | submitted to the Board of Directors for
on the Provision for Impairment of | deliberation. After deliberation and
Assets, the Annual Report and | approval by the general meeting of
Financial Statements 2022 of the | shareholders, PricewaterhouseCoopers
Company, the Reporting of Deloitte | Zhong Tian LLP shall undertake the
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public | work from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Accountants LLP on the Audit of | Certified Public Accountants LLP to
the Annual Report 2022 of the | ensure the quality of external audit in
Company, the Reporting on the | the first year after replacement
Supervision and Inspection of the
Internal Control of the Company
for 2022 and the Work Plan for
Internal Audit for 2023 (Including
the Implementation of Internal

26 April 1st o Audit Work Plan for _2023Q1), the

2023 meeting in | Reporting of Deloitte Touche

2023 Tohmatsu Certified Public

Accountants LLP on the Audit of
the Internal Control of the

Company for 2022, the Proposal
on the Report on Evaluation of the
Internal Control of the Company
for 2022, the Proposal on the
Appointment of the Financial
Auditor and the Internal Control
Auditor for 2023, the Proposal on
Renewing the Framework
Agreement on Daily Related Party
Transactions and Estimating the
Amount of Daily Related Party
Transactions in 2023, the Proposal
on the Signing of the Framework
Agreement on Financial Services
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Between SAIC Finance Co., Ltd.
and the Company's Related Parties
and Estimating the Amount of
Daily Related Party Transactions
in 2023, the Proposal on the Risk
Handling Plan for the Financial
Business Between SAIC Finance
Co., Ltd. and the Company's
Related Parties, the Proposal on
Foreign  Exchange  Derivative
Trading Business in 2023, the
Report of the Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors on the
Performance of Duties for 2022,
and the Report for 2023Q1, and
approve to submit the above
proposals and related content to the
Board of Directors for deliberation

12 June
2023

29 August
2023

2nd
meeting in
2023

3rd
meeting in
2023

Deliberate and approve the
Proposal on the Repurchase of
Shares by Means of Concentrated
Competitive Bidding, and approve
to submit such proposal to the
Board of Directors for deliberation
Deliberate and approve the 2023
Half Year Interim Report and
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(4) Nomination, Remuneration & Appraisal Committee convened 4 meetings during the reporting

period

Convening
date

Content

Important comments and
recommendations

Other particulars

26 April
2023

1st
meeting in
2023

Deliberate and approve the Report
on the Remuneration of the
Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management of the Company for
2022, and the Proposal on the
Addition of Directors of the
Company, and approve to submit
the above proposals and related
content to the Board of Directors
for deliberation

In accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, and the Articles of
Association, it is believed that the
candidate for director complies with
relevant laws and regulations on the
qualifications for director of a listed
company, and it is agreed that Mr.
Huang Jian be nominated the
candidate for director of the 8th Board
of Directors of the Company

29 August
2023

2nd
meeting in
2023

Deliberate and approve the
Proposal on the Candidate for
General Counsel of the Company,
and approve to submit such
proposal to the Board of Directors
for deliberation

In accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, and the Articles of
Association, it is believed that the
candidate for general counsel of the
Company complies with relevant laws
and regulations on the qualifications
for senior management of a listed
company, and it is agreed that Mr.
Zhou Qi be nominated the candidate
for general counsel of the Company

25 October
2023

3rd
meeting in
2023

Deliberate and approve the
Proposal on 2022  Annual
Performance Assessment for the
Company's Professional Manager
and the Proposal on the
Implementation Plan of the
Company's Incremental
Performance Incentive Plan for
2022, and approve to submit such
proposals to the Board of Directors
for deliberation

22
December
2023

4th
meeting in
2023

Deliberate and approve the
Proposal on the Candidate for Vice
President of the Company, and
approve to submit such
appointment proposal to the Board
of Directors for deliberation

In accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, and the Articles of
Association, it is believed that the 3
candidates for vice presidents of the
Company comply with relevant laws
and regulations on the qualifications
for senior management of a listed
company, and it is agreed that Mr. Jia
Jian Xu, Mr. Jiang Jun and Mr. Wu
Bing be nominated the candidates for
vice presidents of the Company

() Particulars about matters where there are objections
CApplicable VN/A

VII1.Explanation on the risks of the Company identified by the Board of Supervisors

CApplicable VN/A
The Board of Supervisors has no objection against the matters under its supervision during the reporting

period.
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IX. Employees of the parent company and major subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period
(1) Information of employees

Number of employees of parent company 14,087
Number of employees of major subsidiaries 192,914
Total number of employees on active duty 207,001
Number of retired employees whose expenses are 43805
undertaken by the parent company and major subsidiaries '
Composition of employees

Categories Headcounts (persons)
Production personnel 3,832
Marketing and sales personnel 702
Engineering technical personnel 8,596
Finance personnel 173
Administrative personnel 784
Total 14,087

Education level

Categories Headcounts (persons)
Postgraduate and above 4,539
University graduate 6,152
Secondary school diploma and below 3,396
Total 14,087

(1) Remuneration policy

VApplicable ON/A

In the aspect of compensation and welfare, SAIC complied with relevant laws and regulations, paying
employees remuneration in full and on time, contributing to employee social insurance schemes and
providing welfare such as paid annual leave and holidays. In the meantime, the Company further
improved the same-direction linkage mechanism between total wages and economic benefits,
continuously promoted collective negotiation focusing on wage negotiations, and gave different
guidance to different enterprises to perfect remuneration allocation. The Company established the
income level of employees at different posts in a reasonable manner, and made more efforts to ensure
remuneration security considering the factors of the affiliated companies including economic benefits
and employee income level.

In the aspect of employee incentives, the Company improved incentive mechanisms and made more
efforts to attract and retain talents as follows: 1) to implement SAIC innovation incentive fund on
technology and management for key talents of SAIC's self-owned brands and innovation projects; 2) to
grant great contribution incentives for the employees awarded with the national and industrial, and
provincial/ministerial award for scientific and technological advancement, the title of skill master, the
title of Chief Mechanic, the title of model worker, the May 1 Labor Medal and other honors, and the
employees awarded with SAIC Technological Innovation Award, Patent Award and Software Award in
2023; and 3) to promote talent development and complete various awards and merits appraisal. In 2023,
18 employees from SAIC won the honor of "Shanghai Outstanding Technical Leader", "Shanghai
Oriental Elite" and "Outstanding Young Scientific and Technological Talent in China's Automotive
Industry", respectively.

(111 Training plan

VApplicable ON/A

In 2023, focusing on the vision, mission, values, "new four modernizations" innovation and
transformation development strategy, and the "Three-year Action Plan for the Development of New
Energy Vehicles", the Company vigorously advanced vocational education for employees and organized
various training for all employees to enable employees' faster knowledge structure update and
improvement in quality and capability, and stimulate employees for innovation. 2023 witnessed
2,190,000 man-time attendances to training at all levels and 940,000 man-day learning hours
accumulatively. Meanwhile, the Company accelerated the construction of the talent team in conjunction
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with the deployment of key projects based on the "two bases" - the training base for automotive
engineers and the training base for highly skilled personnel.

Firstly, the Company has strengthened the building of a senior management talent team. The Company
has enriched the knowledge structure of senior management talents through holding "Bi-Weekly
Lecture”, training classes for young cadres and Tsinghua University Innovation Workshop, providing the
employees with a broader vision, richer thinking and stronger capability to complete work more
perfectly.

Secondly, the Company has held induction training for new employees. The Company organized 10
induction training sessions for all university graduates newly employed by SAIC in 2023 to help them
establish SAIC awareness, feel SAIC culture and values, and better complete their role transition and
integration into the Company.

Thirdly, The Company has deepened the training of professional and technical talents. In 2023, through
continuing education for automotive engineers divided into 177 classes, SAIC provided over 20,000
man-time training. In 2023, the Company focused on updating the "new four modernizations"
curriculum system, and achieved breakthroughs in emerging technologies such as electronic and
electrical architecture, software development, intelligent cockpit, and domain controllers, integrating 130
courses (a total of more than 1,000 courses). In addition, 32 new teachers joined the teaching team and
now SAIC has more than 280 teachers in total. SAIC organized 1 national senior seminar and 1 senior
seminar in Shanghai.

Fourthly, the Company has strengthened the development of skilled talents. In 2023, SAIC's highly
skilled talents were awarded 1 grant for the "Special Allowance of the State Council”, 4 grants for the
"National Technical Expert”, 1 grant for the "Shanghai Skill Master Studio” and 3 grants for the “"Chief
Technician Project". So far, SAIC has established 9 national Skill Master Studios and 14 Shanghai Skill
Master Studios, and over one hundred technicians have been awarded grants for the Shanghai Chief
Technician Project. The Company carried out technical update training for technicians and over one
hundred high-skilled talents participated in industrial evaluation staff training; it also deepened the
professional skills competitions and carried out 18 competitions at all levels. In 2023, over 2,500 skilled
personnel achieved professional skill level promotion through professional skills training and
accreditation, among which, over 800 were senior staff or above. Since the high-skilled personnel
training base was approved in 2011, the Company has continuously increased its investment in the
construction of training bases. The total construction area of the completed training base is
approximately 35,500 square meters.

(1V) Labor outsourcing
CApplicable VN/A

X. Preplan for distribution of profits or capitalization of capital reserve
(1) Formulation, implementation or adjustment of policies on cash dividends

VApplicable ON/A

During the reporting period, the Company implemented and completed profit distribution for 2022
strictly in accordance with the Articles of Association and the Planning of SAIC Motor Corporation
Limited on the Returns for Shareholders for the Following Three Years (2021-2023). The Company
developed explicit and clear dividends criteria and proportions and prepared complete related decision-
making procedures and mechanisms so as to enable independent directors to perform their duties and
play their proper roles and provide the minority shareholders adequate opportunities to express their
views and demands on relevant matters, adequately protecting the legitimate rights and interests of
investors.

In the 19th meeting of the 8th Board of Directors on 28 March 2024, the Company approved the cash
dividends distribution plan as below: The Company plans to distribute cash dividends of RMB 3.69
(inclusive of tax) per 10 shares, amounting to RMB 4,232,229,228.58 in total based on 11,469,455,904
shares, that is, the total shares of 11,575,299,445 net of the number of shares (105,843,541 shares) on the
special securities account for repurchase as of the disclosure date of the annual report. No capital reserve
was converted into share capital. During the period from the disclosure date of the annual report to the
registration date of the equity allocation, if there is any change in the number of shares to which the
Company is entitled due to situations such as the repurchase of shares, the total amount of profit
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distribution is maintained unchanged and the amount allocated per share is adjusted accordingly. The
above profit distribution plan will be implemented after approval of the general meeting of shareholders.

(1) Special instructions on policies on cash dividends
VApplicable ON/A

Whether the policies comply with the provisions of the Articles of Association or the

resolution of the general meeting of shareholders vYestNo
Whether the dividends criteria and proportion are explicit and clear VYes CNo
Whether the related decision-making procedures and mechanisms are complete VYes[ONo
Whether the independent directors have performed their duties and played their YYes CNo

proper roles

Whether the minority shareholders have adequate opportunities to express their views
and demands, and whether their legitimate rights and interests are adequately VYes CONo
protected

(1) Where the profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent company is positive during
the reporting period, but the profit distribution plan is not proposed, the Company shall disclose
the reasons, purpose and use plan of undistributed profit

CApplicable VN/A

(1V)  Preplan for profit distribution and capitalization of capital reserve during the reporting
period
VApplicable ON/A

Unit: RMB
Number of bonus shares per 10 shares (shares)
Number of dividends per 10 shares (RMB) (inclusive of tax) 3.69
Number of shares capitalized (per 10 shares)
Amount of cash dividends (inclusive of tax) 4,232,229,228.58
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the listed
companies in the consolidated statements for the year of 14,106,165,142.98
dividend distribution
Proportion of net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of 30.00
listed companies in the consolidated statements (%) '
Repurchase of shares in cash included in cash dividends 257,966,864.65
Total amount of dividends (inclusive of tax) 4,490,196,093.23
Proportion of total amount of dividends to net profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the listed companies in the 31.83
consolidated statements (%)

XI. The Company's equity incentive scheme, employee stock ownership plan or other employee
incentive schemes and relevant impacts

(1) Relevant incentive events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement but have
no progress or change subsequently

CApplicable VN/A

(1) Incentive schemes not disclosed in the temporary announcement or having subsequent
progresses

Equity incentive scheme
CApplicable VN/A

Other remarks
CApplicable VN/A
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Employee stock ownership plan
CApplicable VN/A

Other incentive schemes
CApplicable VN/A

(111) Information on incentive shares awarded to directors and senior management during the
reporting period
CApplicable VN/A

(1V) Establishment and execution of evaluation and incentive system for senior management
during the reporting period

VApplicable CIN/A

During the reporting period, in order to further stimulate the innovation vitality of senior management,
according to the Proposal on the Implementation Plan of the Company's Further Deepening of the
Reform of the Remuneration System for Professional Managers reviewed and approved at the 8th
meeting of the 8th Board of Directors, and the Proposal on 2022 Annual Performance Assessment for
the Company's Professional Manager and the Proposal on the Implementation Plan of the Company's
Incremental Performance Incentive Plan for 2022 reviewed and approved at the 17th meeting of the 8th
Board of Directors, the Company's professional managers cashed 2022 performance annual pay and
2022 medium- and long-term incentive during the reporting period. According to 2018-2020 tenure
assessment results, the Company's senior management cashed part of 2018-2020 incentives within their
tenure.

XII. Establishment and implementation of internal control systems during the reporting period

VApplicable ON/A

Guided by the Internal Control Integrated Framework (COSO), the Company kept improving its
internal control system and carried out semi-annual internal control evaluations regularly in accordance
with relevant regulatory requirements and other regulations including the Basic Internal Control Norms
for Enterprises and the Guidelines for Enterprise Internal Controls. As at 31 December 2023, the
Company had established 203 management systems and 127 internal control sub-processes covering
major business fields including organizational structure, strategic planning, human resources, budget
management, cash and bank balances, sales and collection, procurement and payment, contract
management, IT, product quality and production safety. During the reporting period, the Company
implemented the internal control effectively, without any significant and material deficiencies identified
in the financial/non-financial reporting internal control. As the internal control auditor engaged by the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP has audited the effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting internal control for the year 2023 and issued the Auditors' Report on Internal Control
with standard unmodified opinion.

Explanation on significant deficiencies in internal control during the reporting period
CApplicable VN/A

XI11. Management and control over the subsidiaries during the reporting period

VApplicable ON/A

The Company has established the Management Process for Subsidiaries and a series of management
systems based on a risk management-oriented philosophy and internal control to strengthen the unified
management of major key matters of subsidiaries such as "Three Major and One Large (Decision-
making on Major Issues, Appointments and Dismissals of Major Cadres, Decision-making on
Investments in Major Projects and Use of Large Sums of Money)". In the meantime, the Company
required investment entities at all levels to establish corresponding systems on a layer-by-layer basis
with reference to the Company's process system, so as to implement layer-by-layer control over
subsidiaries in terms of rules of deliberation and decision-making, strategic planning, project decision-
making, investment management, capital management, and financial management. During the reporting
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period, the Company carried out internal control evaluation, major issues supervision and inspection,
and performance assessment to ensure the standardization operation, risk prevention and relevant risk
solution of subsidiaries.

XIV. Auditors' report on internal control
VApplicable CIN/A

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP issued the Auditors' Report on Internal Control of SAIC
Motor Corporation Limited (PwWC ZT Te Shen Zi (2024) No0.1894). For details, please refer to relevant
announcement of the Company.

Whether the Auditors’ Report on Internal Control is disclosed: Yes

Type of opinion of Auditors' Report on Internal Control: Standard unmodified opinion

XV. Rectification of the issues identified in the special self-inspection campaign concerning

governance of listed companies
N/A

XVI. Others
CApplicable VN/A

Section V  Environmental and Social Responsibility

I. Environmental information

Establish mechanisms related to environmental protection? Yes

Funds invested in environmental protection during the 44 560
reporting period (Unit: RMB 10 thousand) ’

(I) Explanation on environment protection of companies and their subsidiaries listed as key
pollutant discharging units by the environmental protection department.

VApplicable ON/A

1. Pollution discharge

VApplicable ON/A

SAIC Group attaches great importance to environmental protection and has set up environmental
protection leading group and work group especially to advance environmental protection institution and
system construction and implement environmental protection policies strictly. During the reporting
period, the relevant environmental protection information of major subsidiaries of the Company (mainly
holding companies and invested companies) such as SAIC Passenger Vehicle, SAIC Volkswagen, SAIC
GM and SGMW was as follows: types of pollutants including wastewater, exhaust gas and solid wastes,
and major pollutants including chemical oxygen demand (COD), ammonia nitrogen (NH3-N), nitric
oxide (NOx), sulfur dioxide (SO;), etc.. Wastewater, including industrial wastewater and sanitary
wastewater, when meeting the standards after treatment, should be discharged to a local sewage
treatment plant through connecting facility for processing in a centralized manner. Exhaust gas should be
discharged at a high altitude after collection and treatment. Solid wastes should be disposed of properly
through separation and collection. Hazardous waste should be entrusted to eligible units for treatment.
The Company strictly implements a duplicate form system and a standing book management system.

The implemented discharge standards of pollutants include state standards, local standards where the
Company is located and industry standards. Major standards implemented include: wastewater discharge
is applicable to the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard (GB8978-1996): maximum acceptable
emission concentration standard of class 2 pollutants, COD<500mg/L; the Wastewater Quality
Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers (GB/T 31962-2015): COD<500mg/L, NH3;-N<45mg/L;
exhaust gas emission is applicable to the Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants (GB16297-
1996) Grade Il Standard: SO,<550mg/m®, NOx <240mg/m?; the Integrate Emission Standards of Air
Pollutants (DB31/933-2015): SO,<100mg/m®, NOx <150mg/m® the Emission Standard of Air
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Pollutants for Industrial Furnaces and Kilns (DB31/860-2014): NOx <200mg/m®, SO,<100mg/m?>; the
Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boiler (GB13271-2014) gas fired boiler standard: SO,
<50mg/m?®, NOx <200mg/m?; and the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boilers (DB31/387-2018):
NOx <150mg/m®, SO,<20mg/m®, etc.

During the reporting period, the Company’s major subsidiaries (mainly holding companies and invested
companies, excluding HASCO) had 27 wastewater discharge outlets located in Minfeng Road, Hejing
Road, Changji Road, Miquan Road, Tashan Road, Yutian Road, Zepu Road, Cao’an Road, Jinjing Road,
Jinsui Road, Dongjing Road, Xihuan Road, Shuangren Road, etc. There were 873 exhaust gas emission
outlets distributed in painting workshops, vehicle body workshops, GA workshops, engine workshops,
energy centers, technical centers, canteens, etc. The certified emissions and actual emissions for key
pollutant COD were 1,768 tonnes and 327 tonnes, respectively. The certified emissions and actual
emissions for NHs-N were 110 tonnes and 17 tonnes, respectively. The certified emissions and actual
emissions for NOx were 447 tonnes and 118 tonnes, respectively. The certified emissions and actual
emissions for SO, were 63 tonnes and 9 tonnes, respectively. SAIC Passenger Vehicle mainly had
pollutants including COD with an average emission concentration of 86 mg/L, NH3-N with an average
emission concentration of 1 mg/L, NOx with an average emission concentration of 8 mg/m* and SO,
with an average emission concentration of 4 mg/m®. SAIC Volkswagen mainly had the pollutants
including COD with an average emission concentration of 65 mg/L, NHs;-N with an average emission
concentration of 7 mg/L, NOx with an average emission concentration of 35 mg/m® and SO, with an
average emission concentration of 3 mg/m°. SAIC GM mainly had the pollutants including COD with
average emission concentration of 41 mg/L for North Plant and South Plant and 187 mg/L for Cadillac
Plant, NHz-N with average emission concentration of 1 mg/L for North Plant and South Plant and 5
mg/L for Cadillac Plant, NOx with average emission concentration of 11 mg/m? for North Plant and
South Plant and 9 mg/m? for Cadillac Plant; SO, with average emission concentration of 0.12 mg/m? for
North Plant and South Plant and 0.01 mg/m® for Cadillac Plant. SGMW mainly had the pollutants
including COD with average emission concentration of 51 mg/L for Hexi Base and 33 mg/L for Baojun
Base; NH3-N with average emission concentration of 2 mg/L for Hexi Base and 0.5 mg/L for Baojun
Base; NOx with average emission concentration of 85 m%/m3 for Hexi Base and 70 mg/m® for Baojun
Base; SO, with average emission concentration of 3 mg/m® for Hexi Base and 1 mg/m? for Baojun Base.
The major pollutants were discharged in accordance with the emission standard specified by
environmental protection laws and regulations without excess emissions.

2. Construction and operation of pollution prevention facilities

VApplicable ON/A

The Company and its affiliated companies carry out pollution prevention in terms of wastewater, exhaust
gas, noise and solid wastes and encourage third party governance. Governance equipment and facilities
are maintained regularly to ensure effective pollutant governance in compliance with the emission
standards. Eligible monitoring companies are entrusted annually to monitor wastewater, exhaust gas,
noise, etc. The separation of rain and sewage is applied. Besides, heavy-metal-related enterprises are
subject to online monitoring of water pollutants, and fugitive emissions are under strict control. Online
monitoring devices for atmospheric pollutants emission are installed at key atmospheric discharge
outlets such as vehicle painting workshops. In addition, industrial noise pollution governance is in place,
and solid wastes are collected by categories strictly and treated properly. Eligible organizations are
engaged to dispose of hazardous wastes legally. Moreover, a duplicate system and a standing book
management system are implemented strictly, and the sludge reduction treatment of hazardous waste has
been promoted. Therefore, SAIC Group is well equipped with facilities and devices for pollution control
that are under sound operation.

3.  Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental
protection administrative licensing

VApplicable ON/A
59 / 244



SAIC MOTOR ANNUAL REPORT 2023

The Company and its affiliated companies carry out environmental impact assessment of construction
projects following relevant laws and regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment and implement the “Three Simultaneities (the environmental
protection facilities should be designed, constructed and put into operation simultaneously with major
facilities)” strictly. During the reporting period, the new construction, reconstruction and expansion
projects had been approved by the environmental protection department and constructed in accordance
with laws.

4. Emergency plans for environmental emergencies

VApplicable ON/A

The Company and its affiliated companies have prepared emergency plans for environmental
emergencies and have established an emergency organization to carry out emergency responses in a
quick, orderly and efficient manner. This effort reduces casualties and economic losses and prevents
occurrence of such emergencies. Meanwhile, emergency training and drills for environmental
emergencies are carried out properly.

5. Environmental self-monitoring plan

VApplicable ON/A

The Company and its affiliated companies implement the Self-monitoring Technology Guidelines for
Pollution Sources issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of
China, and have prepared self-monitoring plan. Eligible monitoring units are engaged to inspect relevant
pollutant discharge outlets as required to ensure that the discharge of all the pollutants has met the
standards and requirements. Key monitor enterprises disclose the environmental monitoring data on the
environmental information platform of the local environmental protection bureau.

6. Administrative penalties received due to environmental problems during the reporting period
CApplicable VN/A

7. Other environmental information that should be disclosed
CApplicable VN/A

(1) Explanation on the environmental protection of companies other than key pollutant
discharging units

VApplicable ON/A

1. Administrative penalties received due to environmental problems

CApplicable VN/A

2. Disclosure of other environmental information with reference to the requirements for key
pollutant discharging units

VApplicable ON/A

As a leading automotive group in the domestic, the Company has been advancing the implementation of

the 1SO14001 environmental management system and directing affiliated companies to observe

environmental protection laws and regulations and execute environmental emission standards strictly in

the daily operation and project construction. Meanwhile, the Company requires affiliated companies to
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give full expression to environmental protection and sustainable development in the preparation of the
long-term development plan, so as to include the environmental requirements and planning into the
medium and long term business development plan and corporate operating decisions comprehensively as
important elements of enterprise development. Therefore, the Company promotes upgrading and
transformation of enterprises and achieves high-end performance in terms of manufacturing and
environmental protection, thus creating value for the society.

3. Reasons for not disclosing other environmental information
CApplicable VN/A

(111) Relevant information that is conducive to protecting the ecology, preventing pollution, and
fulfilling the environmental responsibility

VApplicable ON/A

During the reporting period, the Company improved its environmental management system and
environmental protection technology, organized environmental protection training, and urged its
affiliated companies to comply with environmental protection laws and regulations strictly, so as to
strengthen environmental protection awareness and professional skills of employees and management
staffs. The Company intensified the management of the total energy consumption of key energy
consumption units and per unit consumption of passenger vehicle products. The Company also promoted
green manufacturing and energy efficiency benchmarking projects, so as to promote the construction of
green factories, green products, green parks and green supply chains. The Company actively assumed
social responsibility and fulfilled the concept of sustainable development.

(1V) Measures taken to reduce carbon emissions and corresponding effects during the reporting
period

Take carbon reduction measures? Yes

Reduction of CO, equivalent emissions 144,217

(Unit: Tonne)
Adhering to the concept of green development, SAIC
Group has set up a dual-carbon working group to promote

Type of carbon reduction measures
(such as using clean energy to generate
electricity, using carbon reduction
technologies in the production process
and developing and producing new
products that contribute to carbon
reduction,etc.)

carbon reduction in the whole lifecycle of products as the
Group pursues “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”.
The Company strives to achieve energy saving and
emission reduction by means of green production, green
industrial development, clean energy, etc. SAIC Group not
only continues to expand the popularity of new energy
products, but also makes simultaneous efforts at the
production end and industrial chain to promote the high-
quality development in a green and low-carbon manner.

Detailed description
VApplicable ON/A

For details, please refer to the Company’s 2023 ESG & Sustainability Report (published on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange website at www.sse.com.cn).
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Il.  Achievement of fulfilling social responsibility

(1) Whether to separately disclose the Corporate Social Responsibility Report, Sustainable
Development Report or ESG Report

VApplicable ON/A

For details, please refer to the Company’s 2023 ESG & Sustainability Report (published on the

Shanghai Stock Exchange website at www.sse.com.cn).

(1) Specific situation of social responsibility
VApplicable ON/A

External donations and public welfare projects Quantity/Content
Total investment (RMB 10 thousand) 2,435.62
Including: Funds (RMB 10 thousand) 1,213.19
Goods converted into money (RMB 10 1,222.43
thousand)
Headcounts of beneficiaries (Person) 213,716

Detailed description

VApplicable ON/A

For details, please refer to the Company’s 2023 ESG & Sustainability Report (published on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange website at www.sse.com.cn).

I11. Specific situation of consolidation and expansion of poverty alleviation and rural
revitalization
VApplicable ON/A

Poverty alleviation and rural

revitalization projects Quantity/Content
Total investment (RMB 10
Thousand) 2,567.22
Including: Funds (RMB 10
Thousand) 2,536.47
Goods converted into
money (RMB 10 30.75
thousand)
Headcounts of beneficiaries 27794
(Person) ’

1. Village-enterprise pairing: SAIC Group and its
major affiliated companies continue to carry out "double
100" village-enterprise pairing with four economically
weak villages in Xuanwei, Yunnan Province, and
collaborate with the urban and rural party organizations to
provide assistance in Chongming District and Jinshan
District, Shanghai.

2. Industry-based assistance: To facilitate the travel of
local residents, main affiliated companies of SAIC Group
carry out living environment improvement and industrial
supporting projects in the paring villages, including
setting up production transformers to enhance electricity
for production and paving production roads and
hardening ground.

3. Employment assistance: SAIC Training Center
launches school-enterprise cooperation with Taijiang

Assistance forms (such as
industrial poverty alleviation,
employment poverty alleviation
and education-based poverty
alleviation,etc.)
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County Secondary Vocational School in Guizhou
Province to deliver training to teachers and provide home
tutoring for students.

4. Education-based poverty alleviation: SAIC Group
and its affiliated companies continue to build brand
education public welfare projects, and actively improve
the teaching environment and educational development
level in key assistance areas with public welfare
platforms such as the “Red Chalk Program”, “Starry
Program” and “Dandelion Program”, as well as
supportive activities like scholarships, volunteer teaching
and remote education.

5. Cultural support: Taking into account the common
needs of villagers from Songlin Village of Xuanwei City,
affiliated companies of SAIC Group have constructed a
rural revitalization pilot base for cultural heritage
promotion and party education, and have built the Roewe
Elderly Activity Center in Songlin Village to facilitate
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protection ability, integrity and independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, and held the
first meeting of 2023 on 26 April 2023 to consider and approve the Proposal to Appoint the 2023
Financial Auditor and Internal Control Auditor.

Independent directors of the Company expressed pre-approval and independent opinions on the change
to the accounting firm and agreed to submit the proposal of the change of accounting firm to the Board
of Directors for deliberation.

At the 13th meeting of the 8th session of the Board of Directors of the Company, the Proposal to
Appoint the 2023 Financial Auditor and Internal Control Auditor was deliberated and approved with 7
votes, 0 veto and 0 abstention. The Board of Directors agreed to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian LLP as the financial and internal control auditor for 2023, with a total annual remuneration of not
more than RMB 4,000,000 (inclusive of the internal control audit fee of RMB 400,000). For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement on 29 April 2023, Announcement of SAIC Group on the
Change of the Accounting Firm (No. 2023-014).

On 15 June 2023, the Company’s 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders deliberated and
approved the Proposal to Appoint the 2023 Financial Auditor and Internal Control Auditor.

Explanation on the change of the accounting firm during the audit period
CApplicable VN/A

Explanation on the decrease of more than 20% (inclusive) in audit fees compared with the previous year
VApplicable ON/A

For the selection and appointment of accounting firm for 2023, the Company invited accounting firms
for bidding. Accounting firms with the highest overall ranking by the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants were invited. Following the principle of openness, fairness, impartiality, honesty and
credibility, the Company conducted comprehensive evaluation in terms of the working plan, personnel
and technical strength, relevant project experience as well as the commercial offer. The fees for the
services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP for the financial and internal control
audit of the Company for 2023 were based on the cost of time spent by its partners and other staff at all
levels on the audit of the project. Factors such as liabilities and risks assumed for the professional
services were also considered.

VIl Risk exposure to delisting
(1) Reasons for delisting

CApplicable VN/A

(1) Measures to be adopted by the Company
CApplicable VN/A

(1) Circumstances and reasons for termination of listing
CApplicable VN/A

VIl Bankruptcy and reorganization
CApplicable VN/A
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IX Major litigation and arbitration matters

O Significant lawsuits and arbitrations for the year v No significant lawsuits and arbitrations for the year

X Suspected violations, penalty and rectification of the listed companies and their directors,
supervisors, senior management, controlling shareholders and actual controllers

CApplicable VN/A

X1 Explanation on credit issue of the Company and its controlling shareholder and actual
controller during the reporting period

VApplicable ON/A

During the reporting period, the Company and its controlling shareholder and actual controller had good

credit records.

XII Significant related party transactions

() Related party transactions related to daily operations

1. Events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement and have no progress or
change subsequently

CApplicable VN/A

2. Events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement but have progresses or
changes subsequently

VApplicable  CN/A

In accordance with the Listing Rules of Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Company's related parties and

related party transactions are disclosed as below:

(1) Major related parties from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 included:

Controlling shareholder: SAIC (Group)

Enterprises related to controlling shareholder:

Shanghai Automotive Industry Development Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
SAIC Property Development Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shanghai Shangkai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shanghai Automotive Electronics Factory Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shanghai Internal Combustion Engine Research Institute Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
ghangthu SAIKC Mobility Investment Partnership (Limited Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
artnership)
Shanghai Saike Mobility Technology Service Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shanghai Qiyuan Human Resources Consulting Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shanghai Automotive Industry Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shenzhen SAIC South Industrial Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shenzhen SAIC South Automobile Sales Service Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Haining Zhongjing Real Estate Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Suzhou Tiandi Huayu Logistics Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shanghai Anji Freight Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Shanghai Huazhen Transportation Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Zhejiang Huayu Logistics Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Wuhan Sanjiang Huayu Logistics Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Guangzhou Wanlong Huajiang Logistics Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Anji Car Rental & Leasing Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Suzhou Xiangdao Car Leasing Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Wuxi Xiangdao Car Leasing Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Zhengzhou SAIC New Energy Leasing Automotive Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
Beijing Saike Travel Technology Service Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
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Haikou Saike Mobility Technology Service Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Fuzhou Saike Mobility Technology Service Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Xiamen Saike Mobility Technology Service Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Rui Chuang Automobile Sales Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Liyang Aiweitugou Equity Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership)

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

RV Life Home Technology Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

RV Life Home (Shanghai) International Travel Service Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

RV Life Home (Fujian) Travel Service Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

RV Life Home (Hainan) Travel Technology Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Aiweitugou Car Rental Service Co. Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Aiweitugou Car Rental Service Co. Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Saike Intelligent Transportation Technology Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Automotive Industry Sales Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Automotive Industry Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Shangfa Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Kaihong Investment Management Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai SAIC Housing Exchange Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Kuobu Industry Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Autombile Nonferrous Casting Plant

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Huizhong Automotive Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Jiaxing Xinsheng Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Anji Huayu Logistics Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shihe Natong (Shanghai) Industry Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Jiangsu Tiandi Huayu IOT Technology Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Anxin Jiyun Logistics Technology (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Duilong Deqing Tongli Business Service Center
Partnership)

(Limited

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Intelligent Vehicle Innovation and Development Platform (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Associate of SAIC (Group)
and company held
concurrently by executive of
SAIC

Shanghai Automotive Chip Engineering Center Co., Ltd.

Associate of SAIC (Group)
and company held
concurrently by director of
SAIC

Shanghai Huhao Auto Parts Co., Ltd.

Associate of SAIC (Group)
and company held
concurrently by supervisor of
SAIC

Wuhan Shangfeng Business Consulting Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing & Rental Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Chengdu Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai International Automobile City New Energy Automobile
Operation Service Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Changzhou) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Haikou) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Jinhua) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Qingdao) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Chongqing) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Hefei Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Jiaxing Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Zhenjiang Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)
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Global Car Sharing and Rental (Sanming) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Huangshan Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Nantong Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Zhiji Information Technology Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Guiyang Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Changsha) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Sanya) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Weifang) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Wuhan Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Chizhou Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Yangzhou Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Ningbo Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Jining) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Yantai) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Fuzhou) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Taiyuan) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Jinan) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Fujian) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Linyi) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanxi Saike Car Rental Co. Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental Liyang Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Saike Car Rental Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Global Car Sharing and Rental (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

Shanghai Huanhang Car Rental Co. Ltd.

Subsidiary of SAIC (Group)

_ Others:

Invested company of SAIC
Company held concurrently by executive of
SAIC

Banma Network Technology Co., Ltd.
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and Vehicles and the Framework Agreement on Financial Services, entered into by and between the

Company and its related parties.
1) SAIC (Group) and related enterprises

A. Framework Agreement on Supply of Commaodities

Framework Agreement on Supply of
Commodities

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Commodities supplied by SAIC Group

and its subsidiaries to the related parties 1,000,000 961,979

Commodities supplied by the related

parties to SAIC Group and its subsidiaries 380,000 142,717
Total 1,380,000 1,104,696

B. Framework Agreement on Integrated Services

Framework Agreement on Integrated
Services

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Services supplied by SAIC Group and its

subsidiaries to the related parties 400,000 156,401

Services supplied by the related parties to

SAIC Group and its subsidiaries 200,000 128,430
Total 600,000 284,831

C. Framework Agreement on Leasing of Housing, Land and Vehicles

Framework Agreement on Leasing of
Housing, Land and Vehicles

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Rents paid by SAIC Group and its

subsidiaries to the related parties 20,000 18,803
Rents paid py the r_elgte_d parties to SAIC 30,000 5.367
Group and its subsidiaries

Total 50,000 24,170

D. Framework Agreement on Financial Services

Framework Agreement on Integrated
Services (excluding SAIC SFC)

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Total

320,000

190,009

Financial services between SAIC SFC and SAIC (Group) and its related companies

Type of transaction

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Interest on deposits of SAIC (Group) and

its related companies in SAIC SFC 43,000 10,688
Loan facility of SAIC (Group) and its

related companies in SAIC SFC 160,000 -
(including interest)

Amount of other financial services, such

as notes, of SAIC (Group) and its related 110,000 -

companies in SAIC SFC

2) Banma Network Technology Co., Ltd.

Framework Agreement on Supply of
Commodities

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Commodities supplied by SAIC Group
and its subsidiaries to the related parties
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Commodities supplied by the related
parties to SAIC Group and its subsidiaries 65,000 21,246
Total 65,000 21,246

Framework Agreement on Integrated
Services

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Services supplied by SAIC Group and its
subsidiaries to the related parties

Services supplied by the related parties to
SAIC Group and its subsidiaries

60,000

41,239

Total

60,000

41,239

3) Shidai SAIC Power Battery Co., Ltd

Framework Agreement on Supply of
Commodities

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Commodities supplied by SAIC Group and
its subsidiaries to the related parties

Commodities supplied by the related
parties to SAIC Group and its subsidiaries

4,293,000

2,790,930

Total

4,293,000

2,790,930

4) Shanghai Motor Vehicle Inspection Certification & Tech Innovation Center Co., Ltd.

Framework Agreement on Integrated
Services

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Services supplied by SAIC Group and its
subsidiaries to the related parties

Services supplied by the related parties to
SAIC Group and its subsidiaries

60,000

47,285

Total

60,000

47,285

5) Shanghai Jieneng Zhidian New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.

Framework Agreement on Supply of
Commodities

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Commodities supplied by SAIC Group and

its subsidiaries to the related parties 49,000 5,598

Commodities supplied by the related

parties to SAIC Group and its subsidiaries i i
Total 49,000 5,598

Framework Agreement on Integrated
Services

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Services supplied by SAIC Group and its

subsidiaries to the related parties 300 92

Services supplied by the related parties to

SAIC Group and its subsidiaries i i
Total 300 92
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Financial services between SAIC SFC and Jieneng Zhidian

Type of transaction

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Interest on deposits of Jieneng Zhidian in
SAIC SFC

1,200

59

6) REPT BATTERO Energy Co., Ltd.

Framework Agreement on Supply of
Commodities

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Commodities supplied by SAIC Group
and its subsidiaries to the related parties

Commodities supplied by the related
parties to SAIC Group and its subsidiaries

280,000

89,878

Total

280,000

89,878

7) Volkswagen Transmission (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Framework Agreement on Supply of
Commodities

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Commodities supplied by SAIC Group

and its subsidiaries to the related parties 1,000 432

Commodities supplied by the related

parties to SAIC Group and its subsidiaries 12,000 10,771
Total 13,000 11,203

Financial services between SAIC SFC and Volkswagen Transmission

Type of transaction

Estimated amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Actual amount for 2023
(RMB 10 thousand)

Interest on deposits of VVolkswagen
Transmission in SAIC SFC

1,800

1,333

(3) Principle of pricing

The price of related party transactions under the Framework Agreement on Supply of Commodities, the
Framework Agreement on Integrated Services and the Framework Agreement on Leasing of Housing,
Land and \ehicles is determined: by reference to the government pricing or guide price where there is
government pricing or guide price; by reference to the market price where there is no government
pricing or guide price but there is a comparable independent third party market price; by reference to the
price of unrelated party transactions with independent third parties where there is no comparable
independent third party market price; or based on cost plus reasonable profit where there is no
government pricing or guide price, market price or unrelated party transaction price. The price of related
party transactions under the Framework Agreement on Integrated Services is determined: based on
related standards for the financial services rendered by a non-banking financial institution.

3. Events not disclosed in the temporary announcement
CApplicable VN/A

(1) Significant related party transactions related to acquisition and disposal of assets or equity
1. Events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement and have no progress or
change subsequently

CApplicable VN/A
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2. Events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement but have progresses or
changes subsequently
CApplicable VN/A

3. Events not disclosed in the temporary announcement
CApplicable VN/A

4. Performance achievements involving performance convention in reporting period should be
disclosed
CApplicable VN/A

(111) Significant related party transactions related to external joint investment

1. Events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement and have no progress or
change subsequently

CApplicable VN/A

2. Events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement but have progresses or
changes subsequently
CApplicable VN/A

3. Events not disclosed in the temporary announcement
CApplicable VN/A

(1V) Balances due from/to related parties

1. Events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement and have no progress or
change subsequently

CApplicable VN/A

2. Events that have been disclosed in the temporary announcement but have progresses or
changes subsequently
CApplicable VN/A

3. Events not disclosed in the temporary announcement
CApplicable VN/A

(V) Financial business between the Company and related finance companies, holding finance
companies and related parties
VApplicable ON/A

1. Deposits
VApplicable ON/A
Unit: RMB 10 Thousand

Related
parties

Opening Movements | Amount incurred | Ending

Relationship balance dueto | Total amount | Total | balance

Maximum Range of
daily deposit deposit
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limit interest changes in deposited in amount
rates the list of the current withdrawn in
related period the current
parties period
Controlling . 0.35%-
SAIC (Group) shareholder Nil 2 025% 1,036,247.02 3,386,618.52 2,897,033.67 1,525,831.87
. A subsidiary of 0
Subsidiary - of | ™ o irolling Nil 0.35%- 207,647.41 4,008,843.89 4,125,952.38 90,538.92
SAIC (Group) 2.025%
shareholder
Company of | N
SAIC (Group)’s 9
directors shareholder’s 0.35%-
. directors, Nil . 37,500.00 -23,678.13 80,620.52 74,442.39 20,000.00
supervisors  and i’ 2.025%
N supervisors and
senior .
senior
management
management
Company  held | Company held
0/f-
Concurrently by | concurrently by Nil 0.35% 6,474.43 1,487.43 115,292.41 123,012.41 241.86
executive of executive of 2.025%
SAIC SAIC
Total 1,287,868.86 -22,190.70 7,591,375.34 7,220,440.85 1,636,612.65
2. Loans
CApplicable VN/A

3. Credit granting or other financial business
CApplicable VN/A

4. Other descriptions
CApplicable VN/A

(V1) Others
CApplicable VN/A

X111 Material contracts and their performance
(1) Trusteeship, contracting and leasing

1. Trusteeship

CApplicable VN/A

2. Contracting
CApplicable VN/A

3. Leasing
CApplicable VN/A
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(1) Guarantee
VApplicable CON/A

Unit: RMB 10 Thousand

General information of guarantee (except guarantee provided for subsidiaries)

. . . Overdue
' ' Amount |  Signed Starting Ending Type of | Collateral| Completion of Overdue amount | Counter Related Related
Guarantor| Relationship| Guarantee of date of date of date of - of party party
guarantee| (if any) guarantee of guarantee - .
guarantee| guarantee| guarantee| guarantee guarantee quarantee guarantee| relationship
Total amount of guarantee incurred during the reporting period 0.00
(except guarantee provided for subsidiaries) '
Total balance of guarantee at the end of the reporting period (A)
. S 298,066.14
(except guarantee provided for subsidiaries)
Guarantee provided to subsidiaries by the Company and its subsidiaries
Total gmount. of guarantees provided for subsidiaries during the 397,208.16
reporting period
Total balance of guarantees provided for subsidiaries at the end of
the reporting period (B) 184,267.28
Total amount of guarantees provided (including guarantee provided for subsidiaries)
Total amount of guarantees provided (A and B) 482,333.42
% of net assets of the Company 1.68
Including:
Amount of guarantee provided for shareholders, actual controller
. - 0.00
and its related parties (C)
Direct or indirect debt guarantees provided for guaranteed parties 311.995.94
whose asset-liability ratio exceeds 70% (D) I
Amount of total guarantee exceeding 50% of net assets (E) 0.00
Total amount of guarantee above (C, D and E) 311,995.94
Explanation on joint liability of undue guarantee N/A

Explanation on guarantees

According to the industry practice, the Company’s commercial vehicle companies provide guarantees for auto repurchase
for dealers or end customers under the specific conditions agreed in the contract. As at 31 December 2023, the guarantee
balances of the above businesses of SAIC Maxus Vehicle Co., Ltd., SAIC Hongyan Automotive Co., Ltd. and Nanjing
Iveco Automobile Co., Ltd. were RMB 2.46 billion, RMB 0.13 billion and RMB 0.32 billion. For details of the guarantees
of SAIC Hongyan Automotive Co., Ltd., please refer to the Annual Report 2023 released by SNAT on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange website at www.sse.com.cn.
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(111) Cash asset management by others under entrustment
1. Entrusted financing

(1) General situation of entrusted financing

CApplicable VN/A

Others
CApplicable VN/A

(2) Single entrusted financing
CApplicable VN/A

Others
CApplicable VN/A

(3) Provision for impairment of entrusted financing
CApplicable VN/A

2. Entrusted loans
(1) General situation of entrusted loans

VApplicable ON/A
Unit: RMB 10 Thousand
Source of Amounts Amount due but
Type funds incurred Undue balance not collected
Entrusted loans fj{:‘;:""”e" 131,495.00 1,329,273.55

Note: The entrustor of above entrusted loans is SAIC Motor Corporation Limited. The balance of
external entrusted loans provided by the Company within the consolidation scope amounts to RMB
17.835 billion.

Others
CApplicable VN/A
(2) Single entrusted loan
VApplicable ON/A
Unit: RMB 10 Thousand
. . Method of Actual If under
Entrustee Type Amount Inze;’gon Mzt:t;'ty OSfOleJJ;CdES oL:sz?fd compensatio A'}:;:jal gains or statutory
n payment Y! losses procedures
19 Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 11 September Working As per o usD
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 12,000 September 2024 owned capital agreement 0.30% 36.50 Yes
2014 funds
19 Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 11 September Working As per o usb
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 3,000 September 2024 owned capital agreement 3.00% 91.25 Yes
2014 funds
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 28 January 28 January Working As per o usD
Investment Co., Ltd. loans usb 7,000 2015 2025 O}ﬁ:ﬁﬁ capital agreement 0-30% 21.29 es
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 29 January 29 January Working As per o usb
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 8,000 2015 2025 Orulgzg capital agreement 0.30% 24.33 Yes
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 30 January 30 January Working As per usb
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 16,000 2015 2025 U}ﬁgz‘: capital agreement 0.30% 30.42 Yes
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted USD 980 1O May | 35 April 2025 owned | Working ASPEr | 5300 USD 2.98 Yes
Investment Co., Ltd. loans 2015 funds capital agreement
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 19 May . Working As per o usD
Investment Co., Ltd. loans UsD 5,000 2015 30 April 2025 U}ﬁgz‘: capital agreement 0.30% 15.21 es
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 19 May . Working As per o usD
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 20,000 2015 30 April 2025 0}?]’:3‘: capital agreement 0.30% 60.83 Yes
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 19 May . Working As per o usb
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 10,000 2015 30 April 2025 0}?}'23‘; capital agreement 0.30% 30.42 Yes
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 29 June Working As per o usD
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 20,000 2016 29 June 2026 0}?}'23‘; capital agreement 0.30% 60.83 Yes
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted Working As per o usb
Investment Co., Ltd. loans UsD 10,000 8 July 2016 8 July 2026 Orulgzg capital agreement 0.30% 30.42 Yes
Self- .
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 3 August 3 August Working As per usD
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 10,000 2016 2026 U}ﬁgz‘: capital agreement 0.30% 30.42 Yes
SAIC Motor HK Entrusted 11 October 11 October Self- Working As per usb
Investment Co., Ltd. loans USD 10,000 2016 2026 owned capital agreement 0.30% 30.42 Yes
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funds
Shanghai Chexiangjia Self- .
Automotive Technology Entrusted 6,500 Z5.3une | o) une 2026 owned | Working ASPEr | 36506 125.22 Yes
© loans 2023 capital agreement
Service Co., Ltd. funds
Shanghai Chexiangjia 13 Self- .
Automotive Technology Emr:JoS;fg 20,000 September 12 Septe?é)ze‘; owned Ws;k:tﬂagl a reﬁfﬂgs[ 3.65% 740.14 Yes
Service Co., Ltd. 2021 funds p 9
Shanghai Chexiangjia 30 Self- .
Automotive Technology Entr:JDs;ﬁg 10,000 November 2 Noverzné)ze‘: owned Ws;k:tnagl a re;Asmgﬁi 3.65% 370.07 Yes
Service Co., Ltd. 2021 funds p 9
Shanghai Chexiangjia 30 Self- .
Automotive Technology Entr:JDs;ﬁg 15,000 November 2 Noverzné)zeé owned Ws;k:tnagl a re;Asmgﬁi 3.65% 48.67 Yes
Service Co,, Ltd. 2023 funds P 9
. Self- .
SAIC International Entrusted 30 October 29 October Working As per
Trade Co., Ltd. loans 200,000 2023 2026 U}ﬁgzg capital agreement 240% 840.00 es
. 23 Self- .
Shanghai Shanghong Entrusted 31 December Working As per
Real Estate Co., Ltd. loans 54,000 December 2029 owned capital agreement 3.00% 1,642.50 es
2020 funds
Self- ]
SAIC Investment Entrusted 131,495 30 June 30 June 2024 owned Work!ng As per 0.00% Yes
Management Co., Ltd. loans 2023 funds capital agreement
Others
CApplicable VN/A
(3) Provision for impairment of entrusted loans
CApplicable VN/A
3. Others
CApplicable VN/A

(IV) Other significant contracts
CApplicable VN/A

XIV Explanation on utilization of raised funds
CApplicable VN/A

XV Explanation on other significant matters that have a significant impact on investors’ value

judgements and investment decisions
CApplicable VN/A
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Section VII  Changes in Shares and Shareholders

I. Changes in share capital

(1) Statement of changes in shares

1. Statement of changes in shares

During the reporting period, the Company’s total shares and share capital structure remain unchanged.

2. Explanation on changes in shares
CApplicable VN/A

3. Effect of changes in shares on financial indicators including earnings per share and net assets
per share in latest year/period (if any)

CApplicable VN/A

4. Other content the Company considers necessary or required to be disclosed by regulators
VApplicable ON/A

The Company canceled 108,161,920 shares repurchased under the 2020 share repurchase program on 11
January 2024 at the China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation. Upon completion of this
cancelation, the total amount of shares of the Company has changed from 11,683,461,365 shares to
11,575,299,445 shares, as detailed in the “SAIC Motor Corporation Limited” -- Announcement on
Implementation of Canceling Repurchase Shares and Share Changes (Lin No0.003 [2024]) on the
Website of Shanghai Stock Exchange at www.sse.com.cn.

(I1)  Changes in restricted shares
CApplicable VN/A

I1. Shares issuing and listing
(1) Securities issuing as at the reporting period
CApplicable VN/A

Explanation on securities issuing as at the reporting period (Please specify separately for bonds with
different interest rate in the duration):
CApplicable VN/A

(1)  Changes in the Company’s total shares and shareholders’ structure, as well as assets and
liabilities
CApplicable VN/A

(111)  Existing shares held by internal employees
CApplicable VN/A

I1l.  Shareholders and actual controller
(1) Total number of shareholders

Total number of ordinary shareholders as at the end of

. . 198,062
the reporting period
Total number of ordinary shareholders at the end of last

. 184,625
month prior to the announcement of the annual report
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(1)

of non-restricted shares) as at the end of reporting period

Shareholding of top ten shareholders, and top ten circulating shareholders (or shareholders

Unit: share
Top ten shareholders (excluding shares lent through refinancing)
Number of Shares pledged, Nature of
Increase/Decrease shares held as Proportion Number of marked or frozen shareholders
Name of shareholders during the FZ) restricted
reporting period at the en_d of (%) shares held Status Number
the period
Shanghai Automotive State-own
Industry Corporation 0 7,324,009,279 62.69 0 Nil
legal person
(Group)
China COSCO Shipping 0 679,420,000 582 0 Nil State-own
Corporation Limited legal person
Yuejin Motor (Group) 0 413,919,141 354 0 Nil State-own
Corporation legal person
Shanghai International . State-own
Group Co., Ltd. 0 403,301,600 3.45 0 Nil legal person
China Securities Finance 0 349,768,454 2.99 0 il Unknown
Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Securities 7,313,007 237,608,614 203 0 il Unknown
Clearing Company Ltd.
Efd””a' Huijin Investment 0 98,585,000 0.84 0 il Unknown
['tzbe' Port Group Co., 0 87,719,298 0.75 0 Nil Unknown
CITIC SECURITIES 7,911,784 56,984,782 0.49 0 il Unknown
Company Limited
Industrial and
Commercial Bank of
China - SSE 50 Exchange 16,960,171 56,921,118 0.49 0 Nil Unknown
Traded Securities
Investment Funds
Top ten shareholders of non-restricted shares
Number of non- Type of shares and number
Name of shareholders restricted shares
held Type Shares
?thgggf' Automotive Industry Corporation 7,324,009,279 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 7,324,009,279
China COSCO Shipping Corporation Limited 679,420,000 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 679,420,000
Yuejin Motor (Group) Corporation 413,919,141 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 413,919,141
Shanghai International Group Co., Ltd. 403,301,600 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 403,301,600
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 349,768,454 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 349,768,454
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Ltd. 237,608,614 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 237,608,614
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 98,585,000 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 98,585,000
Hebei Port Group Co., Ltd. 87,719,298 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 87,719,298
CITIC SECURITIES Company Limited 56,984,782 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 56,984,782
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China -
SSE 50 Exchange Traded Securities 56,921,118 RMB-denominated ordinary shares 56,921,118

Investment Funds

Explanation on special repurchase account
among the top ten shareholders

The repurchase account of the Company is not presented in the “Shares of top ten shareholders”. As at 31
December 2023, the number of shares in the repurchase account of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited was
207,059,461, accounting for 1.77% of the Company’s total share capital. Among them, the Proposal on
Repurchases of Shares by Means of Concentrated Competitive Bidding was reviewed and approved by the
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Unit; share

Changes in the top ten shareholders from the end of the previous period

Name of
shareholder

Additions/
Withdrawals in
the reporting
period

Number of
outstanding shares
lent through
refinancing at the
end of the period

Number of shares held in
shareholders’ ordinary
accounts and credit
accounts and outstanding
shares lent through
refinancing at the end of
the period

Total Proportion
number (%)

Total Proportion
number (%)

Industrial and
Commercial Bank of
China - SSE 50
Exchange Traded
Securities Investment
Funds

Addition

56,921,118 0.49

China Securities -
China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd.-
China Securities -
Pioneer Single Asset
Management Plan

Withdrawal

27,769,507 0.24

Number of restricted shares held by the top ten shareholders and the restricted conditions

CApplicable VN/A

(111) Strategic investors or general legal representative who have been included in top ten

shareholders due to placement of new shares

CApplicable VN/A

IV. Controlling shareholder and actual controller
(1) Controlling shareholder

1. Legal person
VApplicable ON/A

Name

Shanghai Automotive Industry Corporation (Group)

Legal representative

Mr. Chen Hong

Date of incorporation

1 March 1996

Business scope

Manufacturing, development, sales and investment of
automobiles, motorcycles and tractors, operation and
management of state owned assets under authorization, domestic
trading (except for special provisions) and advisory services.

Investment in domestic or foreign
listed companies during the reporting

period

COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co., Ltd. (601919, 1919.HK)
804,700,000 A Shares

Other explanations

Nil

2. Natural person
CApplicable VN/A

3. Special explanation for the Company that has no controlling shareholder

CApplicable VN/A

4. Explanation on changes in controlling shareholder during the reporting period

CApplicable VN/A
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5. Block diagram of ownership and controlling relationships between the Company and
controlling shareholder
VApplicable CON/A

Shanghai Automotive Industry Corporation (Group)

62.69%

A

SAIC Motor Corporation Limited

(1) Actual controller

1. Legal person

VApplicable ON/A

Actual controller of the Company is Shanghai State owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission which is directly under Municipal Government of Shanghai and authorized to represent the
Municipal Government of Shanghai to perform responsibilities as contributor and supervise municipal
state owned assets.

2. Natural person
CApplicable VN/A

3. Special explanation for the Company that has no actual controller
CApplicable VN/A

4. Explanation on the change of control rights of the Company during the reporting period
CApplicable VN/A

5. Block diagram of ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and actual
controller
VApplicable ON/A

Shanghai State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission

100%

A

Shanghai Automotive Industry Corporation (Group)

62.69%

A

SAIC Motor Corporation Limited

6. The actual controller controls the Company through trust and other asset management
CApplicable VN/A
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(111)  Other explanations about the controlling shareholder and the actual controller

CApplicable VN/A

V. The cumulative number of pledged shares of the Company’s controlling shareholder or the
largest shareholder and its persons acting in concert accumulatively accounts for more than 80%

of the Company’s shares
CApplicable VN/A

VI.
CApplicable VN/A

VII.
CApplicable VN/A

Other corporate shareholders holding more than 10% shares of the Company

Explanation on reduction of ownership of restricted shares

VIII. Specific implementation of share repurchase during the reporting period

VApplicable ON/A

Unit: RMB 100 million

Name of share

repurchase plan

SAIC Motor Corporation Limited’s 2023 Plan on Repurchases of the
Company’s Shares by Means of Centralized Bidding

Disclosure time of share
repurchase plan

14 June 2023

Number of shares to be
repurchased and
proportion in total share
capital (%)

Based on the calculation of the lower limit of the total repurchase fund of
RMB 1 billion and the upper limit of the repurchase price of RMB
20.35/share, the total number of shares repurchased is expected to be
49,140,050 shares, accounting for about 0.42% of the total issued share
capital of the Company; based on the calculation of the upper limit of the
total repurchase fund of RMB 2 billion and the upper limit of the repurchase
price of RMB 20.35/share, the total number of shares repurchased is
expected to be 98,280,098 shares, accounting for about 0.84% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.

Amount to be | No less RMB 1 billion (inclusive) and no more than RMB 2 billion
repurchased (inclusive)
Period of proposed | No more than 12 months from the date of approval of the 2023 Repurchase
repurchases Plan by the Board of Directors
Purpose of repurchases Employee stock ownership plan or equity incentive
Quantity repurchased
(shares) 18,875,600
Section VIII Preferred Shares

CApplicable VN/A

Section IX Bonds

I. Enterprise bonds, corporate bonds and non-financial enterprise debt financing instruments

CApplicable VN/A

I1. Convertible corporate bonds

OApplicable

VN/A
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Section X Financial Statements
I. Auditor’s Report
VApplicable ON/A

AUDITOR’S REPORT

PwC ZT Shen Zi (2024) No. 10059

To the shareholders of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited,
Opinion
What we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited
(“SAIC Motor”), which comprise:

+ the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2023;

« the consolidated and company income statements for the year then ended;

+ the consolidated and company cash flow statements for the year then ended;

« the consolidated and company statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for the
year then ended; and

« notes to the financial statements.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated and company’s financial position of SAIC Motor as at 31 December 2023,
and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“CASs”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing (“CSAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of SAIC Motor in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“CICPA Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the CICPA Code.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarized as follows:

(I) Recognition of Revenue from Vehicles
(II) Provision for Product Quality Warranties

Key Audit Matter | How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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(I) Recognition of Revenue from
Vehicles

In 2023, the consolidated revenue of
SAIC Motor totaled RMB
744,705,132,922.20, of which RMB
505,363,130,718.03, or 68% of the total
revenue, was related to the sale of
vehicles.

SAIC Motor mainly produces and sells
vehicles. Pursuant to contractual terms,
SAIC Motor recognizes revenue after
transferring the ownership of the
vehicles and completing the relevant
transactions through dealer’s electronic
platform, or transporting the vehicles to
the agreed delivery locations and
completing the relevant handover of
goods in accordance with the contract.

Due to the significant amount of
revenue from SAIC Motor’s vehicle-
related revenue and the large number
of transactions, we needed apply more
audit effort to address them. Therefore,
we considered the recognition of
revenue from vehicles as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition
of revenue from vehicles mainly included:

e Understood, evaluated and tested the internal
controls relating to the recognition of revenue
from vehicles by management;

e Conducted interviews with management and
major customers to understand the accounting
policy for recognition of revenue from vehicles,
and examined a sample of sales contracts
signed between SAIC Motor and major
customers to read and analyze the key
contractual terms to evaluate whether the
accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from vehicles is in compliance with the relevant
provisions of the CASs;

e We performed the following major procedures
for revenue from vehicles on a sample basis:

1) We examined the supporting
documentation related to the recognition of
revenue from vehicles, including sales
contracts, sales invoices, vehicle
identification number transfers, and other
records in dealer’s electronic platform, as
well as shipment orders, logistics and
receiving records;

2) We requested confirmations of the year-end
balance of accounts receivable from third-
party customers based on the consideration
of factors such as the amount and nature of
the transactions, and requested
confirmations of the annual revenue from
transactions and the year-end balance of
accounts receivable from major related-
party customers;

3) For the recognition of revenue from
vehicles before and after the balance sheet
date, we checked the records on the dealer’s
electronic platform, such as vehicle
identification number transfers, and
supporting documentation, such as
shipment orders, logistics and receiving
records, to evaluate if the revenue was
recognized in the appropriate period;

4) We obtained a detailed record of
subsequent sales return of vehicles after the
balance sheet date to check for significant
sales returns after the balance sheet date.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we have
obtained audit evidence that supports the
recognition of SAIC Motor’s revenue from vehicles.

(IT) Provision for Product Quality

Our audit procedures in relation to the provision for
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Warranties

As at 31 December 2023, the balance of
the product quality warranties in the
consolidated financial statements was
RMB 18,126,664,792.12.

Pursuant to the regulations of relevant
national laws or after-sales service
agreements, SAIC Motor undertakes
after-sales repair or replacement
obligations for automobiles and other
products sold for a certain period of
time. Management estimates and
makes provision for product warranties
in accordance with the above
regulations or agreements, based on the
products sold, taking into account
historical experience and industry
practice, and with reference to factors
such as relevant technical processes,
labor and spare parts costs. The key
judgments and estimates involved in
management’s provision for product
quality warranties are expected unit
warranty and claims costs.

Due to the significant amount of SAIC
Motor’s product quality warranty and
management’s significant judgments
and estimates that were required in the
provision for product quality
warranties, we therefore identified the
provision for product quality warranties
as a key audit matter.

SAIC Motor’s product quality warranties mainly
included:

¢ We gained an understanding of management’s
internal controls and evaluation process
relating to provision for product quality
warranties. By considering the degree of
estimate uncertainty and the level of other
inherent risk factors, such as complexity,
subjectivity, and variability, as well as
management bias and other fraud risk factors,
we assessed the inherent risks of material
misstatement;

e We assessed and tested internal controls related
to the provision for product quality warranties;

e We compared the actual warranty claims
incurred after the period with the product
quality warranties accrued by management in
prior years on a sample basis to assess the
reasonableness of management’s estimates of
the quality warranties and their bias;

e We assessed whether the accounting policy and
related accounting treatment for the provision
for product quality warranties were in
compliance with the relevant provisions of the
CASs;

e We evaluated the reasonableness of
management’s methodology for the provision
for product quality warranties in light of
industry practices;

e We checked the basic data used in the provision
for product quality warranties on a sample
basis, such as sales data, previous warranties
and claims data, and compared them with the
relevant supporting documentation; we
examined the supporting documentation
relating to factors such as technical processes,
labor and spare parts costs to assess the
reasonableness of the projected unit warranty
and claims costs as determined by
management; and we checked the accuracy of
the calculations by recalculating them;

¢ Through interviews with management and
searching public information, we obtained
information on whether there is a major
product defect in the current or subsequent
period that may have a significant impact on
the method and amount of the provision for
product quality warranties.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we have
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obtained audit evidence that supports the significant
judgments and estimates made by SAIC Motor’s
management of the provision for product quality
warranties.

Other Information

Management of SAIC Motor is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in 2023 annual report of SAIC Motor other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management of SAIC Motor is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with the CASs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability of
SAIC Motor to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate SAIC Motor or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of SAIC Motor.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
STIAC Motor to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in these financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause SAIC
Motor to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation (including the disclosures), structure and content of
the financial statements, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within SAIC Motor to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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I1. Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 December 2023

Prepared by: SAIC MOTOR CORPORATION LIMITED

Unit: RMB

ltem

Note |

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Current assets:

Cash at bank and on hand

143,635,984,032.11

155,156,629,467.12

Settlement deposits

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Financial assets held for trading 46,687,571,217.37 45,230,022,623.99

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable 9,093,233,742.03 5,875,419,207.62

Accounts receivable 68,019,556,853.36 62,913,102,665.60

Financing with receivables 16,717,326,180.65 11,550,691,647.05

Advances to suppliers 26,663,439,410.16 22,176,559,259.04

Premium receivable

Reinsurance receivable

Reinsurance contract reserve

receivable

Other receivables 15,945,618,770.22 15,900,854,327.93

Including: Interest receivable 1,029,187,510.10 796,901,904.49

Dividends receivable 997,179,769.65 1,211,251,796.86

Financial assets purchased under 7.378,279,765.49 4,619.815.075.30

resale agreements

Inventories 98,603,705,752.11 88,535,001,044.30

Contract assets

Assets held for sale 114,467,669.36 805,013,278.30

Nan-current assets to be recovered 57,542,577,397.79 61,459,268,581.10

within one year

Other current assets 129,206,875,988.29 107,942,967,057.60
Total current assets 619,608,636,778.94 582,165,344,234.95

Non-current assets:

Loans and advances to customers 65,276,170,042.15 97,977,615,599.55
Debt investments 23,536,184,000.00 24,039,000,000.00
Other debt investments 4,569,999,800.00 843,316,530.00
Long-term receivables 9,912,919,554.85 11,152,010,071.81
Long-term equity in investments 66,701,232,178.58 64,645,136,049.01
Investments in other equity 13,713,232,621.62 17,194,589,995.63
Instruments

Other non-current financial assets 22,775,688,309.19 16,624,603,978.18
Investment properties 2,409,648,237.53 2,184,900,354.43
Fixed assets 83,891,373,583.24 79,239,748,494.54
Construction in progress 13,827,514,290.42 15,736,205,791.63
Bearer biological assets

Oil and gas assets

Right-of-use assets 10,412,315,346.96 10,596,081,444.78
Intangible assets 20,838,234,122.35 18,922,852,521.51
Development expenditure 3,563,190,618.05 3,277,515,477.94
Goodwill 1,210,740,899.77 1,227,749,062.61
Long-term prepaid expenses 3,220,280,820.00 2,427,968,574.06
Deferred tax assets 30,668,413,094.12 28,622,971,691.67
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Other non-current assets 10,514,504,363.77 13,229,771,297.46
Total non-current assets 387,041,641,882.60 407,942,036,934.81
TOTAL ASSETS 1,006,650,278,661.54 990,107,381,169.76

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings 44,920,602,982.12 38,337,475,598.51

Borrowings from the Central Bank

Taking from banks and other

financial institutions 48,630,585,445.29 63,504,163,339.94

Financial liabilities held for trading 50,226,585.32 51,500,458.60

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable 86,030,218,667.52 77,636,152,320.80

Accounts payable 178,672,644,578.39 166,644,919,051.63

Advances from customers

Contract liabilities 21,844,539,308.42 25,343,898,792.34

Proceeds from financial assets sold 490.410,000.00

under agreements to repurchase

Deposits from customers, banks and 52,554,107,622.91 44,936 356,643.96

other financial institutions

Acting trading securities

Acting underwriting securities

Employee benefits payable 13,066,441,462.83 12,779,711,689.94

Taxes payable 6,492,247,225.52 6,596,811,712.80

Other payables 64,180,277,309.86 66,607,620,078.98

Including: Interest payable 18,965,585.98 71,057,893.27

Dividends payable 348,107,084.76 501,397,429.89

Fee and commission income

payable

Reinsurance payable

Liabilities held for sale

N_on?current liabilities to be settled 27.365,163,161.79 30,543,710,127.34

within one year

Other current liabilities 3,142,690,818.06 1,992,422,065.73
Total current liabilities 547,440,155,168.03 543,974,741,880.57
Non-current liabilities:

Insurance contract reserves

Long-term borrowings 51,454,950,549.85 34,555,464,051.99

Bonds payable 11,424,373,533.21 15,122,421,304.69

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual debts

Lease liabilities 10,664,794,265.20 10,746,800,774.69

Long-term payables 1,067,067,503.20 890,134,171.69

g;’;‘fbltgrm employee benefits 4,917,773,927.88 4,832,329,471.30

Provisions 18,630,005,539.51 18,084,650,109.14

Deferred income 11,560,896,427.08 19,178,087,544.09

Deferred tax liabilities 3,104,631,891.39 3,415,756,308.88

Other non-current liabilities 3,478,397,395.16 3,006,758,608.04
Total non-current liabilities 116,302,891,032.48 109,832,402,344.51
TOTAL LIABILITIES 663,743,046,200.51 653,807,144,225.08
OWNERS’ EQUITY (OR SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY):

Paid-in capital (or share capital) 11,683,461,365.00 11,683,461,365.00

Other equity instruments

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual debts
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Capital surplus 57,444,934,930.00 57,896,386,123.57
Less: Treasury shares 4,005,777,667.93 3,747,774,556.69
Other comprehensive income 8,046,397,472.08 10,806,644,268.88
Special reserve 913,497,633.88 922,572,193.57
Surplus reserve 40,843,171,648.51 40,843,171,648.51
General risk reserve 3,921,807,227.17 3,921,807,227.17
Undistributed profits 167,471,253,017.24 156,907,257,677.43
Total equity attributable to equity
owners (or shareholders) of the 286,318,745,625.95 279,233,525,947.44
parent company
Minority interests 56,588,486,835.08 57,